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THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND NEEDS YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

This Offer Circular (the “Circular”) has been sent to all shareholders of HFC Bank (Ghana) Limited (HFC)
on the register of members as at April 30, 2008.

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all your shares in HFC, please send this Circular as soon as
possible to the purchaser or transferee, or to the stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom the
sale or transfer was effected for delivery to the purchaser or transferee.

No person is authorized to give any information or to make any representation not contained in this
Circular and must not be relied upon as having been authorized by HFC, Merban Stockbrokers Ltd. (MSL),
HFC Investment Services Limited, or any of HFC's advisors. Neither the delivery of this Circular nor any
sale of shares hereunder shall under any circumstances create any impression that there has been no
change in the affairs of HFC since the date hereof or that the information contained herein is correct as of
anytime subsequent to this date. Any material change, relevant to the Offer, in the affairs of the
Company during the Offer period will be communicated to the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) and the investing public.

An application has been made to the Ghana Stock Exchange (the "GSE") for the listing of all the
additional shares to be issued under this Offer on the First Official List of the GSE. The GSE assumes no
responsibility for the correctness of any of the statements made, opinions expressed and reports
presented in this Circular.

This Circular has been reviewed and approved by the SEC in accordance with Section 9 of the Securities
Industry Law (PNDC Law 333) as amended. Inits review, the SEC examined the contents of the Circular to
ensure that adequate disclosures have been made.

The distribution of this Circular and the offering of the shares in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by
law. The Company requires persons into whose possession the Circular comes to inform themselves
about, and observe, any such restriction. This Circular does not constitute an Offer and may not be used
for the purpose of an Offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction or in any circumstances in which
such an Offer or solicitation is not authorized or is unlawful.

Before deciding whether to apply for shares, you should consider whether shares are a suitable
investment foryou. Theirvalue can go down aswell as up. Past performanceis not necessarily indicative
of future performance. If you need advice, you should consult a suitable professional advisor.

To ascertain the financial soundness or value of this Offer, HFC shareholders and the investing
public are advised to consult an investment advisor or other professional for appropriate advice.
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This Document has been seen and approved by the Directors of HFC and we collectively and individually
accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information given and that after making all reasonable
inquiries and to the best of our knowledge and belief there are no facts the omission of which would
make any statement in the document referred to above misleading.

HFC BANK (GHANA) LIMITED

(Incorporated in Ghana as limited liability company under the Companies Code, 1963 (Act 179)
with registration No C-39,755

CIRCULAR TO SHAREHOLDERS

REGARDING

A RENOUNCEABLE RIGHTS ISSUE OF 25,432,359 NEW ORDINARY SHARES
OF NO PAR VALUE AT GH¢0.39 PER SHARE IN A RATIO OF
ONE NEW SHARE FOR EVERY FOUR EXISTING SHARES

Sponsored by

MERBAN STOCKBROKERS LIMITED
And
HFC INVESTMENT SERVICES LIMITED

Merban Stockbrokers Limited (MSL) is acting as managers and Lead-Sponsoring brokers to HFC for the
renounceable rights issue. MSL has relied on information provided by the Company and its advisors
and accordingly, MSL does not provide any assurance of the accuracy of the information contained in
this Circular. MSL does, however confirm that to the best of its knowledge, this Circular constitutes full
andfair disclosure of all material facts about the Company and the Offer.

Lynes Quashie Idun & Co has acted as legal advisors to HFC on this renounceable rights issue. Lynes
Quashie-Idun & Co. has relied on information provided by the Company. Accordingly, Lynes
Quashie Idun & Co. does not provide any assurance of the accuracy of the information contained in
this Circular. Lynes Quashie Idun & Co. does however confirm that to the best of its knowledge, this
Circular constitutes a full and fair disclosure of all material facts about the Company and the Offer.

Dated: May 5, 2008
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KEY MILESTONES AND TIMETABLE

Activity

Ex-Rights Date

Qualifying Date

Book Closure

Commencement of Offer
Commencement of Trading in the Rights
Closure of Trading in the Rights
End of Offer

Allotment of Shares

Submission of Offer Results to SEC
Final Dispatch of Share Certificates

Commencement of Trading in Shares

Date

25/04/2008

30/04/2008

02/05/2008

05/05/2008

05/05/2008

23/05/2008

30/05/2008

13/06/2008

13/06/2008

20/06/2008

27/06/2008
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Time (GMT)
17.00HRS
17.00HRS
17.00HRS
9.00HRS
9:00HRS
12.00HRS
17.00HRS
17.00HRS
17.00HRS
17.00HRS

9.00HRS

The dates provided in the activity timetable above are subject to change by the Lead Managers of the
Offer in consultation with the Directors of HFC (subject to the necessary regulatory approvals). Any
amendment will be published in the national daily newspapers not later than 72 hours of receipt of

regulatory approvals.
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DIRECTORS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION OF HFC BANK (GHANA) LIMITED

Directors Nana Agyei Duku
Asare Akuffo
Akwete Akita
Ras Boateng
Sam Mensah
Bartholomew Bassey Ebong
E. Austin Aikhorin
John Kusi Mensah
Stephanie Baéta Ansah
John Sey

Registered Office 'Ebankese’
No. 35 Sixth Avenue, North Ridge
P. O. Box CT 4603, Cantonments
Accra.
Tel: +233-21-242090-4
Fax: 233-21-242095
E-mail: hfcomp@hfcbankgh.com
Website: www.hfcbankgh.com

Company Secretary  Mercy Mamle Tetteh
'Ebankese’
No. 35 Sixth Avenue, North Ridge
P. O. Box CT 4603, Cantonments
Accra.
Tel: +233-21-242090-4
Fax: +233-21-242095
E-mail: mtetteh@hfcbankgh.com

Auditors PriceWaterhouseCoopers
PMB CT 42, Cantonments
Accra, Ghana

Fax: +233-21-761544
E-mail: pwc.ghana@ghpwc.com
Contact Person: Mr. Charles Egan

Registrars Merchant Bank (Ghana) Limited
57 Examination Loop, North Ridge
PO. Box GP 401
Accra
Tel: +233-21-251131-5
Fax: +233-21-251138
Contact Person: Mrs. Harriet Antwi
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E-mail: mbd@merbangh.com
Website: www.merbangh.com
Contact Person: Lilian Atakora (Mrs)

Co-Sponsoring Broker HFCInvestment Services Limited;
No. 6 Sixth Avenue, Ridge Ambassadorial Enclave,
West Ridge, Accra.
P O.Box CT 4603, Cantonments.
Tel: +233-21-683891-3; 664203
Fax: +233-21-664106
E-mail:isl@hfcbankgh.com
Website: www.hfcbankgh.com
Contact Person: Joseph Nketsiah

Legal Advisors Lynes QuashieIdun & Co
P.O.Box GP 2549
Accra
Tel: +233-21-228877/228843
Fax: +233-21-228810
E-mail: lawyers@ghana.com
Website: www.lynesquashie-idun.com
Contact Person: K.N. Aduama Osei

Reporting Accountants Pannell Kerr Forster
Valley View, Farrar Avenue
P.O.Box 1219
Accra
Tel: +233-21-221266/246637
Fax: +233-21-226628
E-mail: pannell@africaonline.com.gh

Website: www.pkf.co.uk s

Contact Person: Eric Tetteyfio
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Nyaniba Estates, Osu
P.O.Box (T 4429, Cantonments,
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Tel: +233-21-784685/783410
Fax: +233-21-760248
E-mail:info@adamsjwt.com.gh
Contact Person: Don Obiloh
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DEFINITIONS

The following definitions apply in this document unless otherwise stated specifically.

”BOG"

“Companies Code”
“Circular” or “Document”
“HFCBank or “the Bank”

'HFC Board” or “HFC Directors”
Or “Directors”

“HFCBranches”
“HFCISL”

“HFCShares”

“Ghana”

“GSE” or “the Exchange”

IIM s L"

“the Offer” or “the Rights Issue”

“Qualifying date”

“Qualifying HFC Shareholder”

“Qualifying Applicant”

The Bank of Ghana, Ghana's central bank and the regulator of the
bankingindustryin Ghana.

The Ghana Companies Code 1963 (Act 179) as amended
The Offering Circular dated May 5, 2008

HFCBank (Ghana) Limited.

The Directors of HFC Bank (Ghana) Limited.

Allthe 12 branches of HFC Bank.

HFCInvestment Services Limited.

HFCBank (Ghana) Limited shares.

The Republic of Ghana.

The Ghana Stock Exchange.

Merban Stockbrokers Limited.

The Offer of 25,432,359 new ordinary shares of HFC Bank at a price
of GH¢0.39 per share in this renounceable offer to existing
shareholders in a ratio of one (1) new ordinary share for every four

(4) ordinaryshares held as atthe qualifying date.

The date, April 30, 2008, on which persons whose names appear
ontheregister of HFC Bank members qualify for this Offer.

HFC shareholders on the register of shareholders as at the
qualifying date, and who have no legal restrictions to partaking in
this offer.

Any person whois 18 years or over, or a corporation, partnership or
other unincorporated associations who are resident/incorporated
in Ghana or some other state, or country provided that the offer to
and acceptance by such an applicant of this Offer is not in
contravention of the laws of either that state or country.
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“Receiving Agent” or “Receiving Agents” HFC Bank (Ghana) Ltd., HFC-ISL, Merchant Bank (Gh) Ltd., MSL or
any other company appointed by HFC Bank who will be receiving
applications and payments from qualifying applicants under this
Offer. Full contact details of the receiving agents can be found on
page 71 of this Document.

“Renouncee” A person in favour of whom a qualifying shareholder has
renounced his/herrights.

“Renouncer” A qualifying HFC shareholder who has renounced some or all of
his/her rights in favour of another person(s).

“Rights” The legal and financial right of qualifying HFC shareholders to
partake in this Offer, which right could be traded to other persons
for value, in which case the right is traded on the GSE, or which
right could be renounced in favour of another person(s).

“SEC” Securities and Exchange Commission.
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LEGAL ADVISOR'S CERTIFICATE

DIRECTORS: E. K. AKYER-DIAMSON IAMES QUASHIE-TPUN
LA oM MA, (EANTEE)
MWITARY PLELIC
PLEASE QUOTE IN RELY
[
| N5 7120
LYNES QUASHIFE-TDUN & CQ., . POSTAL ADDRESS: F. 0. B0X GF 1549
LAl SRACTITIONIRS, NOTAHIES FUBLIC BCCRA
TRADEMARK b PATTMT AGENTS SHANA,
TEL: +233.71. 720677 [ 126643 OFFICE: HOUSE NUMBER E.12E/ 4,
FAX: +132.21. 2268810 FICI0 THOMPSOH ROAD,
CAELES: SOLICITORS, AMCCRA ATHUBRARA,
E-MALL: lawyer sy conn.ah oF [wysByhie ACCRA

WEBSITE: wevows Iviirsr cashie=l6L0r oo
05 February 2008

The Director-General,

seruritles and Exchange Commission,

15t Flger, Stale Enterprises Commission Building,
Miristries, Aocra.

The Managing Director,
Ghana Slock Exchange,
Sth Floor, Cedl House,

Accra.
Dzar Eirs,
HFC BANK (GHANA) LIMITED RIGHTS TSSUE —
LEGAL ADVISORS’ COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
1. Int ion:
wWe have been legal advisers to HFC Bank (Ghana) Limited In respecl uf the Bank’s
Rights [ssue, and we submit this opinion on the strengla of documents made
availzble to and reviewed by us and responses o enquides made by us with tha
I Bank. Parlicularly, we mention Lthe following documents as consliubing the bases of

the opinlon expressed by us herein:
i) Copy af the Certificate of Incorperation of HFC Bank (Ghana) Lmited.

i’} Copy of Licerce to Operate Businass of Banking ssued by tha Bank of Ghana
uncar the Banking Law, 1989 (PHNDCL. 225,

i} Copy of Regulations of Home Finance Company Limited (A Public Limited
Lizbillby Company).

) 2006 Annual Repert, EFC Bans.

A3sociBtes: K. M. Aduarea Ol C. Krehene-Yilliams E. ©. Armah M. ¥, Aeamany A, K. Dabi
B.A. {Hons) B.A (Hons) LB (Homs] RA (Hars) B.A. {ED] LLE. [Hons)
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v] Fules and Conditicns of Service of HFC Bank and olher related documents.
vi)  Dacuments covering some leases and tenancies taken by HFC.

vil)  Some agreements involving HEC.

viii; Rereipts evidencing duc payment of Municipal Levies,

ix) Certificstes evidencing tax and SSNIT compliance,

) Sharehaldars’ resolution sutharising the Rights Issus.

xi)  Board resolution to allocate rerounced shares to inleraslad persons and to list
the sharas an the Ghana Stock Exchange.

xii)  Copy of Rights Issue Cffer Circular.

This opinicn is limited to matters covered by the laws of Ghana in force and in
operation 2s a2t the date hereof, In effaring it, we have not advertad to laws and rules
of oractice in jurisdictions other than Ghana and have not sought o axpress any
ppinien on malters of law or practice in jurisdictions other than Ghana.

The assumptions upon which this opinion is given ere sel oul in the Schedule of
Assumptions, belawr,

Businass of HFC:

Documeants mace available to us have been reviewed in the fght of Lhe applicable
laws of Ghana and the relevanl rules ard requlaticns, and we express the opinion
that:

HFC Bank (Ghana) Limited (hereinafter refarred to as "EFCY) has bzen duly
incorparated under the Companies Code, 1963 (Act 179) as a public compary with
the ligkility of its membears limitad by shares.

HFC has baen duly licensed by the Bank of Ghana under the Barking Law, 1289
[PNDCL 225) to carry on the business of banking.

Corporata Authorisations!
HFC hes oblainad el the corporate autharisations necessary ar advisable In
connection with the Righls Issoe and GSE lisling,

Directors and Management:

We have locked at the Regulations of HFC, the relevant portions of the Campany’s
Annual Report, 2006, and heve also mads aporopriale and necessary enguiries and
investigations concerning the directorship and managzment of HFC and we express
the opinion that:
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3.1

4.1

5.1

g.]

Fifa}

Z.2

I 1.3

The Board of HFC meets the competence, character and inteyrily critaria contained
in the Companies Code, 1963 and the Regulations of tha Company.

Material Contracts:

We have reviewsd samoles of vanous agreements entered inlo by HFC and e
exprass the apinion that:

The malerial contracts mede available to us were in areper farm and valid under
Lthe laws of Ghana.

Investigation By Regulatory Bodies:

W= have made the necessary enguirizs and we express the opinion that:
HFC is not the subject of any investigalion by any regulatory baody.

The Regulations:
We have roviewed the Regulations of HFC and we express the opinien that:

The Regulations of HFC comply with all reguirements &s to the conwents of the
Regulations of a Publc Limiwed Liability Compary.

The Rights Issue:

We have generally raviewad the pesition of HFC regarding the Rights Issue and we
axpress the opinian that:

To the best of ocur knowledge, there are no provisions of the contractual
agreements of HFC seen and reviewed by us which preclude it from undertaking
tre Rights Issue and listing on the Ghana Stock Exchange.

Tha Rights Issug Circular complies with Ghana Stock Exchange Listing Rules as well
the Securities and Exchanges Commission Requlations  (L.1. 1/28).

All <he statutory or regulatory requirements or filing requirements necessary ar
advisablz In respect of or in relation to or in connection with the Rights Issue, nave
bees compled with,

HEC has obtained all the requiatory and stalutery approvals and consents that are
nacessary or advisable in coanection with the Rights Issue and GSE listing.

SCHEDULE OF ASSUMPTIONS
We have reliad on informatian and documents cbtainad from HRC and this aoinion
has been tendared on the assumption and basis that:

1. The answers given to questions or queries raised by us were correcthy
and zcourstely given,
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2. All the documents supplied or shown to us are complete, authentic and
up to date, and that all copy dacuments supplied or shown to us are
complete and conform to the ariginals;

3. The person or persons who signed the documents had authority to do so.

4. The authorising resolution was duly passed by a guorum of HFC's
shareholders at a properly convened general meeting.

Yours faithfully,

.*t fff"" }
A

s_Hlffﬂm;;}lMPANY

LYNES QUA
.-r'"_""

/,.-"
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SHARES CAPITAL AND CAPITALISATION

Capital Structure as at September 30, 2007

Authorised Issued Shares Stated Quoted Value Market
Shares Capital (GH¢) Per Share (GH¢) Capitalisation (GH¢'m)
1,000,000,000 101,660,000 7,025,387 0.54 54.09

The authorised and issued number of shares for HFC before and after the Rights Issue are as follows, based
on the assumption that all shareholders will exercise their full rights under the Rights Issue:

Before Issue After Issue
Authorised Number of ordinary shares of no par value 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued Number of ordinary shares of no par value 101,660,000 127,092,359
Stated Capital 7,025,387 16,944,007
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PART 1
THE RIGHTS ISSUE

1.1 Legal Basis for the Rights Issue

At the Annual General Meeting of HFC Bank held on Tuesday, 3 April, 2007, the shareholders of the Bank
passed a resolution authorizing the Directors to carry out a Rights Issue to increase the stated capital up to GH¢10
million, in accordance with section 202(b) of the Companies Code, 1963 (Act 179).

1.2 Reasons for the Rights Issue

As part of the projections of the Bank's 5-year strategic plan, there is the need for the Bank to undertake a Rights
Issue for the following reasons.

. To increase the Bank's single obligor limit to a level that will enable it meet the requirements of large
reputable corporate bodies.

. To raise additional funding for branch expansion.

° To pursue investment opportunities in Ghana and other West African countries.

° To upgrade the Group's Information and Communication Technology.

The breakdown of the application of the GH¢9.9 million to be raised in order of priority is as follows:

Item | Description Amount (GH¢)
1. Branch Expansion 5,356,054.80
2. Upgrade of Information and Communication Technology 595,117.20
3. Investment opportunities in Ghana and other West African countries 3,967,448.00

Total 9,918,620.00

13 Key Terms of the Offer
1.3.1 NumberofShares

The Offer comprises a Renounceable Rights Issue of 25,432,359 new ordinary shares at GH¢0.39 per share to
qualifying shareholders in a ratio of one (1) new share for every four (4) existing ordinary shares held. The shares
to be issued under this Offer will rank pari-passu with the ordinary shares of HFC Bank already in issue and listed
onthe GSE.

1.3.2 Fractional Shares

The ratio in which the rights to ordinary shares are allocated to qualifying shareholders may result in fractional
entitlements. Fractional entitlements of 0.5 shares and above will be rounded up to one new share, whilst those
below 0.5 shares will not be allotted to qualifying shareholders but will be consolidated and allotted by the
Directors to qualifying applicants as they deem fit.

1.3.3  Pricing ofthe Shares

The Rights shares are offered at a price of GH¢0.39. This price is about a 28% discount on the market price per
share of 54Gp as at 31 March, 2008.
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1.3.4  Minimum Proceeds from the Offer

The minimum amount to be realized from the Offer has been set at GH¢2,975,586.00 or 30% of the Offer, which
would involve the sale of 7,629,708 shares. In case this amount is not realized, all monies received will be
returned not laterthanJune 8, 2008.

1.3.4  Oversubscription

HFCwill refund all monies on applications in excess of the GH¢9,918,620.00 set to be realized from the Offer. Any
amountin excess of GH¢ 9,918,620.00 will be refunded to applicants on June 23, 2008.

If HFC does not make refunds of extra application monies to the receiving agents by June 23,2008 then HFC will
pay to investors, interest on the unpaid amounts from June 23, 2008 at the ruling Bank of Ghana prime rate for
each day of default until the refund is made to receiving agents. HFC will announce such refunds through a
national newspaper with wide circulation within 72 hours of the making of such refunds.

1.4 Additional Offer Details

1.4.1 Dealings

An application has been made to the GSE to list the additional 25,432,359 new ordinary shares to be issued under
this Offer on the First Official List of the GSE, alongside the existing 101,660,000 Ordinary shares listed. It is
expected that dealings in the additional shares will commence alongside the existing shares on the GSE by June
27,2008.

1.4.2 Qualifying Date and Distribution of the Rights Issue Circular
The shares on offer under this Rights Issue will be offered to the shareholders of HFC whose names appear in the
Register of Members at the close of business on April 30, 2008.

The Registrars of the Company have sent a copy of this Circular containing the allotment details and Application
Form through the post to shareholders on record on the qualifying date. Shareholders who do not receive copies
of the Circular by May 12, 2008 may contact the offices of the Registrars, Sponsoring Brokers or the receiving
agentsforacopy of the Circular (subject to availability of extra copies of the Circular).

1.4.3 TradingintheRights

The rights to this Offer (rights) may only be traded on the GSE from May 5, 2008 to May 23, 2008. Shareholders
who desire to sell all or some (partial renunciation) of their rights on the GSE should contact their brokers, or the
Sponsoring Broker atthe address below:

Merban Stockbrokers Limited
57 Examination Loop, North Ridge,
P. O. Box GP. 401, Accra.
Tel: 233 21 251131-5
Fax: 23321251138
Website: www.merchantbank.com.gh
E-mail: mbd@merbangh.com
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1.5 Application

All applications for shares under this Offer must be in whole numbers and no purported application for fractions
of ashare will be accepted

1.5.1 Shareholdersand Renouncees

Shareholders wishing to take up some or all of their rights must complete the appropriate sections of the
accompanying Application Form in order to exercise their rights. Shareholders are allowed to apply for shares in
excess of their rights (extra shares). Thiscan be done under Section A of the Application Form.

Shareholders are allowed to renounce in part or in whole their rights in favour of a third party at their own option
by completing Sections A and C(A) of the Application Form. Renouncees should complete Section C (B) of the
Application Form and submit it together with Sections A and C(A) completed by the Renouncer to the receiving
agents.

Should a shareholder desire to renounce his/her rights in favour of more than one person, he/she should list the
names of the persons, stating the number of shares renounced in favour of each renouncee in Section C of the
Application Form. Each renouncee must then complete a copy of Section C(B) of the Application Form and
submit same, together with payment for the shares applied for, to the receiving agents.

1.5.2 Non-Shareholders

Non-shareholders may also apply for the HFC shares under this Offer and may do so by completing Section D of
the Application Form. The Directors of HFC will allot any shares not taken up by shareholders under this Offer to
qualifying investors as they deem fit.

1.6 Escrow Account

All monies collected from applicants will be lodged into an Escrow Account Number 0002/01/001786/26 with
Merchant Bank Ghana Ltd. A copy of the Escrow Agreement has been lodged with the SEC.

1.7 Allotment
The allotment of shares to applicants will be:

a) Firsttosatisfy all duly completed applications from qualifying shareholders and their renouncees as pertains
to qualifying shareholders' rights in the Offer; then to

b) Satisfy all duly completed applications from qualifying shareholders and renouncees for extra shares and
duly completed applications from non-shareholders for shares, pro-rating where necessary.

To the extent that applications for extra shares received are more than the available number of unsubscribed
Rights under the Offer, the Directors of the Bank, in consultation with the sponsoring brokers, may allocate fewer
'extra shares' than applied for.

1.8 Refund for Unsuccessful Application
Ifany applicationis not accepted oris accepted for a smaller number of shares than applied for, the balance of the

amount paid on application will be returned to the receiving agents not later than June 23, 2008 for onward
distribution to applicants. HFC will announce such refunds through a national newspaper with wide circulation
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within 72 hours of the making of such refunds.
1.9 Payment

For applicants residentin Ghana, payment may be made by cash, cheque, postal or money order which should be
presented at the offices of the receiving agents where the Application Form is lodged. All cheques, postal or
money orders should be crossed HFC Rights Issue and endorsed Commission to Drawer's Account. This
endorsement must be signed by the drawer. Bank commissions and transfer charges on application monies must
be paid by the applicant. Applications in respect of which cheques are returned unpaid for any reason
whatsoever, or for which funds do not clear for the full amount payable on the application by 5 pm on May 30,
2008 may be treated as invalid.

Qualifying applicants not resident in Ghana must purchase shares under this Offer in foreign currency and for this
purpose HFC allows payment’ for shares in the United States Dollars (USS), Great Britain Pounds (GBE£) or Euros
(€). The price of an HFC share under this Offer is US$ 0.4 for payment in United States Dollars, GBP 0.2 for
payment in Great Britain Pounds, and € 0.26 for payment in Euros. Funds should be remitted for the benefit of
HFCRights Issue by bank transfer to the following account details:

uss GBE €

Citibank N.A Lloyds TSB Bank Ltd BHF-BANK

Swift Code: CITIUS33 Swift Code: LOYDGB2L Swift Code: BHFBDEFF

111 Wall Street. New York Oversees Division. 6 Eastcheap. Bockenheimer, Landestrase 10.
ABA No.; 021000089 London. EC3P 3AB D-8000 Frankffurt AM Main 1.
MERCHANT BANK (GH) LTD Sort Code: 309634 Germany

SWIFT CODE: MBGHGHAC MERCHANT BANK GH LTD. MERCHANT BANK GH LTD
Account No. 36056153 Swift Code: MBGHCHAC Account No.: 400-721599

Account No.: 01015368

For further credit to: For further credit to: For further credit to:
MSL / HFC Rights Issue MSL / HFC Rights Issue MSL / HFC Rights Issue
Account No. 0002/01/001786/26 Account No. 0002/01/001786/26 Account No. 0002/01/001786/26

Any application from a person not resident in Ghana, which is not received in a form which will realize cleared
funds for the full amount payable on the application by 5 pm on May 30, 2008 may be treated as invalid. Bank
commissions and transfer charges on application monies must be paid by the applicant. Applications, in
respect of which cheques are returned unpaid, for any reason whatsoever, will be rejected.

1.10 Submission of Completed Application Forms

All qualifying applicants resident in Ghana must submit their duly completed Application Forms at the offices of
the receiving agents by 5 pm on May 30, 2008,

Qualifying applicants not resident in Ghana must submit their duly completed Application Forms to the
receiving agents, whose contact details are provided on page 73.

Applicants who choose to mail their Application Forms to the receiving agents are advised to use the registered
mail services. However, all documents mailed to the receiving agents by applicants will be at the applicant's
own risk, and HFCshall treat applications not received by 5 pm on May 30, 2008 as invalid.
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Applicants are to note that Application Forms must be lodged at the same receiving agent office where payment
is made for the shares applied for. The receiving agent will acknowledge receipt of the application forms and
funds from the applicants.

1.11 Cost of the Offer

The total cost of the Offering is not anticipated to exceed 2.51% of the amount to be raised. HFC will pay all fees
outofthe proceeds of the Issue.

Below are the summarized details of the cost of the offering.

Item Amount GH¢ % of Amount to be Raised
Professional and Advisory Fees
(legal & financial due diligence, financial & management

advisory, media advisory, etc.) 70,000 0.71
Commissions & Success Fees 100,000 1.00
Regulatory Fees

(GSE, SEC, Registrar-General) 35,000 0.35
Direct Publicity, Administration, Taxes & Logistics

(Media publicity, marketing , printing, logistics, VAT etc.) 35,000 0.35
Miscellaneous 10,000 0.10
Total Estimated Cost 250,000 2.51

1.12. Summary of Details of the Offer

No. of Authorized Shares 1,000,000,000
No. of Issued Shares 101,660,000
Ordinary Shares on Offer Under the Rights Issue 25,432,359
Price per Share (GH¢) Under the Rights Issue 0.39
Outstanding Shares After Offer 127,092,359.00
Expected Proceeds from the Offer (GH¢) 9,918,620
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PART 2
THE BANKING INDUSTRY AND THE ECONOMY OF GHANA

2.1.

2.1.1

2.1.2

2.1.3

Index

The Economic Environment
The performance of the national economy has been quite impressive over the last six years. From 4.2%
in 2001, annual growth of the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) reached 6.2% in 2006.

Stability and Growth

Highinflation, which has hitherto been the bane of the economy, has been brought under control. Year-
end inflation fell from 40.5% in 2000 to 21.3% and further to 12.7% at the end of 2007. The economy is
now able to absorb shocks, both internal and external, better than previously. Itis noteworthy that the
key macroeconomicindices have stayed around targets set by the managers of the economy despite the
year-long energy crisis and the destructive floods that affected the northern sector and some districts in
the south of the country. The single-digit inflation target which could not be attained in fiscal year 2007
is now targeted by the end of 2008 in spite of the high and rising crude oil price.

Value of Currency

Depreciation of the local currency, the cedi, moves in positive correlation with inflation. Thus the cedi
depreciated by 49.5% against the United States dollar during financial year 2000 when inflation hit
40.5%, but fell steeply to 3.7% in 2001. Except for 2002 when the cedi depreciated by 14.12 % against
the dollar, annual depreciation during the last six years have been under 5%.

Interest Rates

In the same vein, the Prime Rate, previously known as the Bank of Ghana Rediscount Rate, declined
steadily from 27% p.a. in 2000 to 12.5% in 2006, but moved up slightly to 13.5% in November 2007.
Along with the Prime Rate, other interest rates also fell. The yield on government securities, which is
the benchmark for other market rates, fell with the Prime Rate. The interest equivalent on the 91-day
GOG/BOG Treasury Bill fell from 41.99% in December 2000 to 17.08% p.a. in December 2004 and
continued further down to 10.62% p.a. at the close of year 2007.

The table below presents a summary of the performance of selected macro-economic indicators from
2001t02007.

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

GDP Growth [%] 4.2 4.5 5.2 5.8 5.9 6.4 6.3
Year End Inflation [%] 21.3 15.2 23.6 11.8 14.8 10.5 12.7
Cedi/Dollar Depr. [%] 3.7 141 4.5 2.2 0.9 1.65 4.00
GSE Index Change [%] 11.42 45.96 154.67 91.3 -29.58 4.97 31.84
BOG Prime Rate [%] 27.00 24.50 21.50 18.50 15.50 12.50 13.50

2.14

Capital Markets

The GSE All-Share index, as indeed all stock market indices are, has a negative correlation with interest
rates and inflation. As inflation and interest rates rise, the index declines. During the high inflation
period of 1999 and 2000, the GSE All-share index recorded changes of -15.22% and 16.55% respectively,
but recovered from the slump in 2002 with an impressive growth of 45.96%. The most impressive
performance of the All-share index to date is the 2003 change of 154%. The prime rate is now at its
lowest for decades and yields on short term investments have also fallen.

The investment climate is changing in favour of capital market instruments and the stock market is

already showing signs of strong growth.
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The Ghanaian Banking Industry

The bankingindustry in Ghana has evolved from the immediate post-independence era when exchange
and interest rates were administratively controlled by the Bank of Ghana to the current regime where
these rates are determined by market forces. The change in policy was due to the realization of the
failure of the 'control policy' which led to stagnation in the banking sector. Banking sector credit as a
percentage of GDP was 3.6% in 1983, compared to 21.2% in 2006. By 1983, most of the state-owned
banks were rendered insolvent by non-performing assets and required government intervention
between 1989 and 1991 through the NPART to stay in business.

Currently, the banking sector is one of the sectors with the brightest opportunities in spite of increasing
competition. Beside policy reforms the growth of the sector has been buoyed up by the prevailing
macro-economic conditions declining inflation, rising GDP growth, fiscal discipline, etc. Some of the
significant reforms that have occurred since 2001 include the abolition of the 15% of deposits
secondary reserve requirement and the increase in the minimum stated capital of banks from
¢200million (GH¢20,000) to ¢70billion (GH¢7million)

The Regulatory Environment

The bankingindustry is regulated by the following laws:
e The Companies' Code 1963 (Act 179);
e TheBankingAct, 2004 (Act673)
e The Foreign Exchange Control Act, 2006 (Act723)
e The Bank of Ghana Act, 2002 (Act 612), which defines the functions and responsibilities as a
regulator.

The Role of the Central Bank

The Bank of Ghana has overall supervisory and regulatory authority in all matters relating to the banking
and non-banking business with the purpose to achieve sound, efficient banking system in the interest of
depositors and other customers of these institutions and the economy as a whole.
The Central Bank ensures:

o Depositors funds are safe;
The maintenance of solvency, good quality assets, adequate liquidity and profitability;
Adherence to statutory and regulatory requirements
Thereis fair competitionin the industry;
Maintenance of efficient payment systems

Market Participants

Since 2002, five banks, four foreign and one local, have entered the industry, bringing the total number
of banksin the country to twenty-three (23) with a total branch network of 500 as at December 2007.
The table below shows the banks operatingin the country as at December 31, 2007.

Bank

1. GhanaCommercial Bank Ltd.

2. Standard Chartered Bank Ltd.

3. BarclaysBank Ghana Ltd.

4. Agricultural Development Bank Ltd.
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5. EcobankGhana Ltd.

6. National Investment Bank Ltd.
7. SG-SSBBankLtd.

8. HFCBank(Ghana)Ltd.

9. MerchantBank Ghana Ltd.

10. BPIBank

11. TheTrust BankLtd.

12. Prudential Bank Ltd.

13. First Atlantic Merchant Bank Ltd.
14. CALBankLtd.

15. International Commercial Bank Ltd.
16. Stanbic BankLtd.

17. Amalgamated Bank Ltd.

18. Unibank Ltd.

19. United Bank for Africa

20. ZenithBank Ltd.

21. GuarantyTrust Bank Ltd.

22. Intercontinental Bank Ltd.

23. Fidelity Bank Ltd.

Performance of the Industry

The Banking sector has enjoyed remarkable growth over the past five years. Between 2002 and 2006,
net interest income increased by 140% while net profit for the industry also went up by over 100%
during that period. Return on assets dropped from 4.3% in 2002 to 3.5% in 2006, a result of the
increasing competitionin the sector.

Growth inthe banking sector assets was robustin the first half of 2007, growing by 45.6% to GH¢ 6,164.7
million. This growth was driven by increase credit to public and private sector institution and household
consumers. Branch expansion and more aggressive marketing as well as the roll-out of new banking
products and services accounted for the increase in banking system assets.

Developments in the banking system through September 2007 show strong asset growth, improved
profitability and asset quality, adequate liquidity and a strong capital position of banks to absorb shocks.
Banks continued to expand credit instead of investment in government instruments on account of the
relatively low returns on those instruments.

The significant growth in the banking industry asset size was fueled mainly by deposits, which
amounted to GH ¢4,360.7 million, an annual growth of 42.3 per centin September 2007 compared with
38.9 per centannual growth over the same period in 2006 (¢3,064 million).

Average base rate quotations of the banks remained generally unchanged at 19.36 percent at the end of
2007. They were within the range of 18.00 per cent and 21.45 per cent after being revised downward by
1.41 basis pointsin the first quarter of the year.
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Future Outlook

The entire financial services industry is generally healthy as a result of the prevailing favourable macro-
economic and regulatory environment. The banking sector remains very competitive, adequately
resourced and stable with noimmediate threat to system stability.

Going forward, banks need to reduce cost to improve upon their efficiency and hence profitability. The
enactment of the Credit Reporting Bill is expected to enhance credit risk management thus improving
the quality of bank assets and impact on profitability of the banks.
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PART 3
HFC BANK (GHANA) LIMITED

3.1

3.2

33

Background

HFC Bank (Ghana) Limited has its beginnings in the former Home Finance Company (HFC) Limited, a
mortgage finance institution which was incorporated on May 7, 1990 under the Companies' Code,
1963 (Act 179), and commenced business on December 2, 1991. The company was promoted by the
Government of Ghana (GOG), Social Security and National Insurance Trust (SSNIT) and Merchant Bank
(Ghana) Limited to implement the IDA (World Bank) and GOG/SSNIT-funded pilot housing finance
project under the IDA (World Bank) Urban Il loan agreement.

HFC obtained its license as a non-bank financial institution from the Bank of Ghana on August 1, 1994,
became a public company on October 5, 1994 and was subsequently listed on the Ghana Stock
Exchange on March 17, 1995. The company obtained a Universal Banking License from the Bank of
Ghanaon November17,2003.

By a special resolution of the Board of HFC and with the approval of the Registrar of Companies, Home
Finance Company Limited changed its name to HFC Bank (Ghana) Limited on December 1, 2003. Thus
from a beginning as a purely mortgage finance institution, HFC added investment management and
savings mobilization business to its operations and became a fully-fledged universal bank offering
mortgage finance, investment banking services and a wide range of commercial banking products.

Strategic Direction

The overall strategy of the Bank is directed to achieving growth in profitability and branch operations,
expanding its operations into the West African sub-region and North America, maintaining its
leadership in home mortgage finance and regaining its leadership position in fund management. The
Bank is currently engaged in revising the requirements for mortgage products to make them more
accessible for customers. It is also implementing a high-level electronic platform that provides
customers with secured single sign-on transactional capabilities.

Operations and Subsidiaries

The Bank's wholly-owned subsidiary company, HFC Investment Services Limited, continues to engagein
investment banking, as a natural strategy fit to the core activities of the Bank. It also has a wholly-owned
subsidiary, HFC Realty, which offers property related services.

The Bank has a 60% equity stake in UG-HFC Limited, a joint venture company established in 1998 with
the University of Ghana to develop a commercial property at the Ridge Ambassadorial areain Accra, and
a51% equity stake in Boafo Micro Finance Service Company

The Bank is currently managed under three divisions, namely, Mortgage Banking, Commercial Banking,
and Investment Banking.
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HFCBank (Ghana) Limited offers the following financial products and services:

Commercial Banking

HFC Current Account

HFC Savings Account
HFCHomesave Account
HFC Fixed Deposit Account
HFC Life Starter Account
HFCStudent Plus Account
HFC Money Transfer

HFC Fastxt (SMS)

HFC Fastcash (ATM)
HFCAuto Loans

HFC Consumer Loans

HFC Educational Loans
HFC Rent Advance Facility
HFC Foreign Trade Services

Corporate Banking

HFC Small & Medium Enterprises Banking
Relationship Management
Private Banking

Mortgage Banking

HFCHome Purchase Mortgage
HFCHome Equity Mortgage
HFCHome Improvement Mortgage
HFCHome Completion Mortgage
HFCBuy, Build & OwnaHome

Investment Banking

HFC Bank (Ghana) Limited, through its wholly -owned subsidiary HFC Investment Services Ltd (HFC-
ISL) is licensed to provide fully-fledged investment services to all customers as follows:

Funds Management

HFC Unit Trust

HFC Real Estate Investment Trust (HFC-REIT)

HFC Equity Fund

Asset Management

Provident/Pension fund management

Fund management for collective investments, groups and institutions including investment clubs

and churches
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e Endowmentfund management
e Privateclientinvestmentservices

HFC Brokerage Services Limited

Executing all transactions on the Ghana Stock Exchange on behalf of clients and for its own portfolio
Providingin-depth research reports on all equities listed on the Ghana Stock Exchange.

Providing investment and financial advisory services to corporate bodies, institutional and
individual investors

o Developingforeigninvestmentlinks to enhance foreign direct investment
e Executingover-the-counter transactions

e Underwriting equity and debt capital for companies

e Managementand sponsorship of new issues.

HFC Realty Limited

HFC Realty a wholly-owned subsidiary of HFC Bank, and offers Investment Advisory Services, which
includes:

Project Management

Estate Management
Valuation Services

Property Development & Sale

Boafo Microfinance Services Limited

HFC Bank and CHF International registered Boafo Microfinance Services Ltd. as a non-financial
subsidiary of the Bank in December 2006.

The mission of Boafo is to extend financial services to low and moderate-income Ghanaian
households in their pursuit of shelter, business, education, and other opportunities.

Boafo addresses a market niche by providing housing and enterprise microfinance loans to
households living and working in informal settlements in towns where HFC Bank operates.

Facilities provided include:

° Deposit Mobilization

° Micro Credit Facilities
° Microfinance Housing
Service Delivery

HFC Bank has five Automated Teller Machines in five of the Bank's twelve branches, namely Ridge,
Legon, Tema,Techiman and Kumasi.

Management is continuing their electronic banking expansion process to pass on convenience in service
delivery.
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All branches are networked offering real time on line banking services; customers can thus transact
business atany branch nearestthem.

The bank's slogan underpins their service ethos: 'Banking. The way you like it!" That is, HFC Bank
focuses their efforts and resources to cater for any category of banking needs of the customer.

Branch Offices

HFC Bank has twelve branches in four regions of the country. Greater Accra region has eight branches
including one in Tema; Ashanti has two with one branch each in Brong Ahafo and Northern regions. All
the branches are networked and also operate on one banking software platform. Additional branches,
are expected to be opened across the country to bring the specialized products of the bank closer to its
customers.

Information and Communication Technology

HFC Bank operates a centralized system. All its twelve (12) branches in the country are networked.
Currently five branches have ATMs with three more branches due to be provided with the facility by the
end of the second quarter of this year. The Bank also provides SMS services for mobile phone users to
check their balances and request for special banking services. The Bank will introduce Internet Banking
and Visa Card by the end of the year 2008.

Shareholding Structure

The total number of issued shares sum up to 101,660,000 with the twenty largest shareholders together
holding 94,053,830 shares, representing 92.69% of total issued shares of the Bank.

Alist of the twenty (20) largest shareholders and their holdings as at 19" March 2008 is depicted below:

Name Percent of Issued Capital
Social Security & National Insurance Trust 20.87%
Union Bank of Nigeria PLC 19.67%
Ghana Union Assurance Company Limited 12.20%
Union Homes Savings & Loans 11.39%
Financial Investment Trust Limited 7.29%
BBG/State Insurance 7.26%
BBGN/ SSB Eaton Vance Tax Managed 3.07%
SIC Insurance Company Limited 2.64%
HFC Unit Trust 1.71%
EDC Stockbrokers Limited 1.17%
BBGN/SSB Eaton Vance Structured 0.94%
MHIL/Union Homes O. N. Chionuma 0.74%
Vanguard Assurance Company Limited 0.69%
HFC Staff Provident Fund 0.63%
BBGN/Northern Trust Co. AVFC 63143 0.50%
Galtere International Fund 0.50%
Capital and Equity Ltd. 0.49%
Mr. A. Akuffo 0.32%
Mr. E. Derkyi 0.29%
The Gold Fund 0.20%

Total 100%
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Directors' Shareholding
Directors who have shares in the Bank are as follows:

Name Number of shares % of Issued Shares
Mrs Stephanie Baeta Ansah 182,718 0.18
Mr. Asare Akuffo 330,172 0.325
Nana Agyei Duku 45,000 0.044
Mr. Akwete Akita 46,617 0.046
Mr. John Sey 1800 0.002
Total 606,307 0.597
3.8 Material Contracts

All contracts that HFC has entered into are those related to the normal course of business.
3.9 Litigation
Alllitigation that the Bank is involved in will have no adverse impact on the conduct the Bank's business.

Actions instituted by HFC are usually for recovery of loans and for vacant possession of mortgaged
properties from defaulters.

Litigation by HFC
e Maron Enterprises Limited

HFCissued a writ against the Customer/Borrower, Mortgagor and Guarantors for recovery of the sum of
GH¢ 185,899.32 with interest. The facility is secured with a mortgage.

Each year, HFC makes adequate provision for loan losses in its financial statement in line with Bank of
Ghanarequirements.

Litigation Against HFC

e There is an action instituted by Centre for Agricultural and Rural Development against HFC which is
pending in the High Court. The claim against HFC in the Suit is for special damages of GH¢ 5,400, and
general damages of GH¢ 20,000. HFC filed a statement of Defence in the Suit on 10th July, 2007 but the
plaintiff has taken no further step in the action even though the taking of further stepsis long overdue.

e  Writs were issued by six (6) individuals against HFC and O'Sullivan Estates Limited. The main matter in
issue in the actions is whether an 11-acre land claimed by the children of Nii Sessei Bortey of Teshie
belongs to the children of Nii Sessei Bortey or O'Sullivan Estates.

3.10 Directors, Management and Employees

3.10.1 Board of Directors

HFC Bank has a ten-member Board of Directors consisting of eight (8) NonExecutive Directors, of which
oneisthe Chairman and two (2) Executive Directors, of which one is the Managing Director.
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The Board is responsible for setting the Bank's strategic direction, for leading and controlling the Bank
and for monitoring activities of the executive management. The Board provides an independent

assessmentof the Bank's progress and prospects.

The Non-Executive Directors are independent of management of the Bank. They have the requisite
knowledge and experience to make valuable contributions to the Bank's progress. The Managing
Director is a separate individual from the Chairman and he sees to the implementation of strategies and
policies adopted by the Board. The Board of Directors meets at least four times a year.

The Board's membership presently comprises the following:

Business/
Name Age Position Occupation Address Other Directorship
Nana Agyei Duku | 68 Chairman | Managing GUA House,
Director, Ghana $828/1, Ringway | UG —HFC Ltd.
Union Assurance Estates, Osu
(GUA) P. 0. Box GP 1322
Accra
Asare Akuffo 51 Managing | Managing No. 35 Sixth Ave. | HFC Investment
Director Director, HFC Bank | North Ridge Services Limited
(Ghana) Limited. Box CT4603 UG-HFC Limited
Cantonments
Accra HFC Realty Limited
Boafo Microfinance
Services Ltd
Akwete Akita 54 Executive | Executive Director, | No. 35 Sixth Ave, | HFC Investment
Director Finance & North Ridge. Services Limited.
Investment Box CT4603
Banking-HFC Bank | Cantonments UG-HFC Limited
(Ghana) Limited. Accra
Ras A. 46 Member | Chief Executive 41A 6™ Avenue Golden Beach
Boateng National Health P. O. Box M.149 Hotels;
Insurance Scheme | Accra
SSNIT
NHIS
Sam Mensah 58 Member | Chief Executive, Trust Towers African Capital
SEM Financial Box CT 2069 Markets Forum
Services Limited. Cantonments
Accra Human Capital
Network (Gh)
Camelot Ghana
Limited
SEM Financial
Group Limited
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Business/
Name Age Position Occupation Address Other Directorship
Bartholomew 62 Member Representative, Stallion Plaza Consolidated
Bassey Ebong Union Bank of 40 Marina Discount House
Nigeria PLC Lagos Limited
Nigeria.
Union Property
Company Limited
Union Trustees
Limited
William Street
Trustees Limited
CDL Assets
Management
Limited
E. Austin Aikhorin | 59 Member MD, Union Homes | 153 Ikorodu Rd., Union Homes &
Savings & Loans Onipamu, PBM Savings & Loans
Limited, Lagos 041, Shomolu, Limited
Lagos, Nigeria
John O. Kusi 50 Member Representative P.O. Box 2663 Metropolitan
Mensah State Insurance Accra. Mall Limited
Company of Ghana
HFC Realty
Company Limited
Stephanie Baéta | 62 Member Consultant No. 6 Regina HFC Investment
Ansah Crescent, Services Limited;
Regimanuel Gray
East Airport SBA & Associates
Estate. P. O. Box Limited
AN.15707, Accra
North
John Sey 70 Member Corporate H/No. P222 Finance and
Consultant and South Ofankor Development
Advisor P. 0. Box 11570 Board of the
Accra-North Methodist Church,
Ghana
Mercy Mamle 54 Company Lawyer N. 35 Sixth Ave. Manya Krobo Rural
Tetteh Secretary North Ridge Bank Limited
Box CT4603
Cantonments

Accra
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The profile of the directors are as below :

Nana Agyei Duku (Chairman) Nana Duku is an experienced insurance executive and currently the Managing
Director of Ghana Union Assurance Company Limited. He also serves as a Director of UG-HFC Ltd., a joint venture
company between HFC Bank and the University of Ghana. He was appointed to the Board on February 24,1993.

Mr. Asare Akuffo (Managing Director) Mr. Akuffo, one of the pioneer management staff, was appointed the
Managing Director of the Bank in July 2005. He has extensive finance and auditing experience. Before joining HFC
Bank, Mr. Akuffo was an Investment Manager at SSNIT. He is a director of HFC Investments Services Ltd, HFC
Realty Ltd and Boafo Microfinance. He is a Chartered Accountant by profession, and was appointed to the Board
onSeptember1,1995.

Mr. Akwete Akita (Executive Director, Finance & Investment Banking) Mr. Akita was appointed Executive
Director in charge of Finance & Investment Banking of the Bank in November 2005. He has wealth of banking
experience after having worked for Ghana Commercial Bank Limited for seven and half years before joining HFC
Bank. Heis also a Director of HFC Investment Services Limited.

Mr. Ras Boateng (Non-Executive Director). Mr. Boateng was a Deputy Director General at SSNIT and is currently
the Chief Executive Officer of the National Health Insurance Scheme. He is a Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA)
and also holds an MBA in Finance. He is a Director at Golden Beach Hotels. His appointment to the Board took
effecton November 15, 2001.

Dr. Sam Mensah (Non-Executive Director) Dr Sam Mensah is a representative of SSNIT on the HFC Board. He
joined the Board on November 15, 2001. Currently he is a technical advisor to the Ministry of Finance. He is also a
director of SEM Financial Group Limited, a consulting and financial services group. He is a director of Africa
Capital Markets Forum and Camelot Ghana Limited as well. He holdsa PhDin Finance and MAin Economics.

Mr. Bartholomew Bassey Ebong (Non-Executive Director) Mr. Ebong is the Group Managing Director / Chief
Executive Officer of Union Bank of Nigeria He represents Union Bank of Nigeria PLC. He currently serves on
numerous boards including Consolidated Discount House Limited, Union Property Company Limited, Union
Trustees Limited, William Street Trustees Limited and CDL Assets Management Limited.

Mr. Austine Aikhorin (Non-Executive Director) Mr. Aikhorin represents Union Bank of Nigeria. He has held
various senior positions at Union Bank of Nigeria, and is currently the Managing Director of Union Homes Savings
and Loans Limited. He is a member of the Chartered Institute of Bankers (Nigeria). He joined the Board on March
18,2004.

Mr. John O. Kusi-Mensah (Non-Executive Director) Mr. Kusi-Mensah is the Head of Corporate Affairs of the SIC
Insurance Company Limited. He is the representative of the SIC of Ghana and the Ghana Reinsurance
Organization on the Board. He is a valuer by profession and a fellow of the Ghana Institute of Surveyors. He was

tth

appointed a Director of the Board on 30" March 2005.

Mrs. Stephanie Baéta Ansah (Non-Executive Director) Mrs. Baéta Ansah is the founding Chief Executive of Home
Finance Company Limited and the Bank. Before assumingthe position of Chief Executive at HFC, she worked with
Merchant Bank (Ghana) Limited where she became Deputy Managing Directorin 1982. Mrs.S.B. Ansahisalsoa
Director of HFC Investment Services Limited and SBA and Associates Limited. She is a lawyer by profession but
worked for 30 years with the banking sector. Her appointment as a non-executive director took effect from July
1%,2005 on her retirement.
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Mr. John Sey (Non Executive Director) Mr. Sey is a Chartered Accountant by profession and a former Senior
Partner at Deloitte and Touche, a firm of Chartered Accountants and Management Consultants. He is a past
president of the Institute of Chartered Accountants (Ghana) and Rotary Club of Accra, and a past Chairman of
Ghana Commercial Bank Limited. He was a Managing Director at First Ghana Building Society. He is currently a
Director on the Finance and Development Board of the Methodist Church, Ghana. He became a member of the
Board on April 25, 2002.

3.10.2 Management
The profile of the top managementis as below:

Asare Akuffo 51 (Managing Director) Mr. Akuffo was appointed the Managing Director of the Bank in June 2005.
He has extensive finance and auditing experience. Before his appointment at HFC Bank, Mr. Akuffo was an
Investment Manager at SSNIT. Mr. Akuffo is also the Executive Director responsible for HFC Investment Services
Limited. He is a Chartered Accountant by profession, and was appointed to the Board on September 1, 1995.

Akwete Akita 54 (Executive Director, Finance & Investment Banking) Mr. Akita was appointed Executive
Director in charge of Finance & Investment Banking of the Bank in November 2005. He has a wealth of banking
experience having worked for Ghana Commercial Bank for seven and half years before joining HFC. He is also a
Director of HFC Investment Services Ltd.

Charles Martinson, 56 (General Manager, Business Development), Mr. Martinson has had over thirty years
banking experience. Prior to joining HFC Bank in November 2003, he worked with Cal Bank Limited for eleven
years. He holdsan MBA degree and isalso a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Bankers.

Mercy Mamle Tetteh 54 (Mrs.) (Board Secretary and Head of Legal), Mrs. Tetteh holds an LLB and a BL and has
had over twenty eight-years professional experience. Prior to joining HFC Bank, she worked with Bank of Ghana
and the FINSAP Secretariat. She has been working with the Bank as Head of Legal and Company Secretary since
April 1998.

Charles Ofori Acquah 46 (General Manager, Corporate Banking). He is currently the Head of HFC Bank's
Corporate Banking Divsion. He joined the then Home Finance Company in 1994 as a Finance Officer. He worked in
anumber of Departments and became the Treasurer of the Company. Mr. Ofori-Acquah is a holder of a BA (Hons)
in Political Science and is an Associate of the Chartered Institute of Bankers, England, UK.

Charles Bonsu 50 (General Manager, Mortgage & Consumer Loans) Mr. Bonsu began his career with Fannie
Mae (the Federal National Mortgage Association USA)in 1986. He was responsible for the management of a pool
of Mortgage-Backed Securities. Prior to Joining HFC Bank in 1999, he worked for the Ghana Stock Exchange as the
Management Information Systems Manager. Mr. Bonsu holds a Bachelors degree in Accounting and a Masters
degree in Management Information Systems.

Charles Otoo 48 (General Manager, Banking Operations) Mr. Otoo began his banking career in 1981 and has
over 24 years of banking experience drawn from Barclays Bank, Merchant Bank and SG-SSB Bank. He is a Fellow of
the Chartered Institute of Bankers, London & Ghana, and holds an MBA in Strategic Management.

Benjamin Dzoboku 33 (Head, Internal Control and Audit), a Chartered Accountant by profession, Mr. Dzoboku is
a member of Institute of Chartered Accountants (ICA-Ghana) an Associate of the Institute of Professional
Financial Managers (IPFM UK) and a member of Institute of Internal Auditors (USA). He also holds an MBA in
Financial Management. Prior to joining HFC Bank in January 2007, he worked with SG-SSB Bank as Internal
auditor from October 2003 to December 2006. Between June 2000 and September 2003, he worked with
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Pannell Kerr Forster (Chartered Accountants) as a Senior Auditor.
3.10.3 Employees

The table shows the breakdown of the average number of persons employed by HFC Bank over the past two
years:

Category 2006 2007
Management 45 56
Supervisors/Officers 93 146
Clerical 67 68
Non-Clerical 24 32
Total 229 302

3.10.4 The organizational structure of the Bank is depicted in the diagram below.
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Remuneration and Compensation
3.11.1 Directors' Remuneration

The Non-Executive directors are entitled to sitting allowances and directors' fees. While the chairman s
entitled to a sitting allowance of GH¢ 450 per sitting and an annual fee of GH¢ 6,000, each of the other
non-executive directors is entitled to a sitting allowance of GH¢ 375 per sitting and an annual fee of GH¢
4,800.

3.11.2 ManagingDirector's Remuneration

The Managing Director currently receives a gross salary of GH¢ 73,500 per annum. He is also entitled to
arentallowance, entertainment allowance, electricity, water, telephone and fuel allowances, as well as
free security services.

Corporate Governance and Board Practices

HFC Bank (Ghana) Limited recognizes the valuable contribution that Corporate Governance makes to
long-term business prosperity and to ensuring accountability to its shareholders. The bank is
therefore fully committed to the principles and practice of good corporate governance. The bank is
managed in a way that maximizes long-term shareholder value and takes into account the interests
of all of its stakeholders.

3.12.1 Board Committees
The Board operates mostly through committees. Currently the Board has the following sub-committees

3.12.2 Finance and Credit Committee

The Chairman of the Board chairs the Finance and Credit Committee of the Board of Directors. It is
made up of three Non-Executive Directors and two Executive Directors. The Board is responsible for
taking decisions on issues pertaining to the Bank's business and general policy guidelines, and the
subsequent presentation of reports to the full Board for ratification and approval.

3.12.3 AuditCommittee

The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board. It comprises three Non-executive Directors, namely,
John Sey as Chairman, Sam Mensah and John Kusi Mensah. The Executive Directors and the Internal
Control Manager are ordinarily in attendance at the meetings. The duties include; keeping under
review the scope and results of the internal and external audits as well as the independence and
objectivity of the auditors. It also keeps under review, internal financial controls, compliance with laws
and regulations and safeguarding of assets. In carrying out its duties, the Committee may, at its
discretion, consult with internal and external auditors and other relevant bodies.

3.12.4 Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is appointed by the Board and is composed of Non-executive Directors
with John Sey as Chairman, Ras Boateng, Dr. Sam Mensah, John Kusi Mensah and Stephanie Baéta
Ansah. The duties of the Committee are to establish a transparent framework for developing policy on
executive compensation, to advise the Board on the appropriate compensation for Directors and on
general managementand employee remuneration

3.12.5 Executive Committee
The day-to-day management of the Bank's operations is under a team of competent management
personnel with diverse backgrounds. The current executive management team consists of the
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Managing Director, Executive Director (Finance & Investment Banking) and General Manager (Business
Development), Company Secretary, General Manager (Banking Operations), General Manager
(Mortgage and Consumer Loans) General Manager (Corporate Banking) and the Treasurer.

3.12.6 Control Systems

The Board has ultimate responsibility for ensuring compliance with the company's regulations and
procedures. This role is complemented by the Inspection Division which ensures effective compliance
with procedures at the branch and subsidiary level and the Internal Audit Department which focuses on
compliance at the head Office. The efforts of these internal organs are further complemented by Bank
of Ghanainspections and statutory audits by the Bank's auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers.

3.13 Disclosure of Interests by Directors

As at January 29, 2008, the interest of HFC Bank's Directors and their immediate families in HFC shares
were as follows:

Name Shares Held by Family
Director

Nana Agyei Duku 45,000 Nil

Asare Akuffo 330,172 3,600

Akwete Akita 46,617 Nil

Stephanie Baeta Ansah 182,718 6,000

John Sey 1,800 Nil

3.14 Other Disclosures

e Relationship Among Directors — There are no family relationships amongthe Directors.

e Bankruptcy Petitions—No petition under any bankruptcy law has been filed against any Director, or
any partnerships of which such persons were partners, or of any company in which such persons
are or were Directors

e Criminal Proceedings or Convictions for Fraud or Dishonesty — No person who is a Director, or has
been nominated to become a Director has been convicted in a criminal proceeding or is a named
subject of any pending criminal proceeding relating to an offence involving fraud or dishonesty.

e Prohibition against Financial Advisory or Capacity to Hold Office — No person who is a Director, or
has been nominated to become a Director has been subject of any judgment or ruling of any court
of competent jurisdiction, tribunal or government body permanently or temporarily restraining
him from acting as an investment advisor, dealer in securities, Director or employee of a corporate
body or engagingin any type of business practice or activity or profession.

e Materiality of Management Interest in the Company's Business and Affairs — No member of
management or any other person related to them have any material interest in the company either
directly orindirectly.

e Directors' Powers to Borrow and Charge the Company's Assets — The Directors may exercise all the
powers of the company to borrow money and to mortgage or charge the property and undertaking
or any part thereof, and to issue debentures. Such powers can be varied by amending the
Company's Regulations
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3.15 Share Price Performance
HFC was listed on the Ghana Stock Exchange on March 17, 1995. The stock has enjoyed appreciable
levels of price increases, most notable in the 1996 through 1998 and during the 2003 and 2004 stock

market bull runs.

Chart 1: HFC Share Price
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From Chart 1 we notice that right after the listing of HFC shares the stock saw little price momentum as it rose
steadily, staying flat against the GSE All-Share Index. This was at a period when stocks in general received little
investor attentioninan economy that was plagued with high interest rates and inflation.

Chart 2: HFC Share Relative to the Market
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The stock, however, skyrocketed in 1997 and 1998 gaining 72.8% and 219.7% respectively at a time when the
market gained 41.9% and 69.7% respectively. This started a bullish ride in the stock, which ended in 2000,
following the 1999 market slump, when the value of the market was eroded by 15.2%.

Chart 3: HFC Capital Gains relative to gains of the GSE All-Share Index
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Returns on the stock dwindled at the turn of the millennium. The stock was flat in 2001 and 2002 (Chart 3). In
addition, it fell steeply relative to the market.

However, improved economic fundamentals and corporate profits revived investor interest in the stock market
all over again. This started the bull run of the early 2000s. HFC shares broke new highs trading session after
trading session recording its highest climb in the history of the stock. It rose 318.8%, its highest ever, in 2003. At
the same time the GSE All Share Index rose 154.7%, a gain, which was adjudged the best in the world at the time
(Chart 3).

Shares of HFC continued its price momentum in 2004 gaining 150% at a time when the Index gained 91.3% (Chart
3), helping the price of the stock to reach its all-time high of GH¢1.1080 per share in May 31, 2004.

However, the stock's price began a steady slide as the investors started to pull out profits from the stock market
toward the end of 2004. This sparked an all-out investor sell-off of shares, which cascaded into declining stock
prices across the board in 2005. The year would mark one of HFC's worst performance, the stock declining 40% to
GH¢0.6000 per share, while the market wiped off 29.9% of its value, its worst performance too.

HFC stock has since continued to experience bearishness relative to the market (Chart 2). Traded volumes
shrunk, albeitimprovingin recent weeks. The bearishness is evident in the stock's 200-day moving average price
of GH¢€0.5392, which had crossed below its current price of GH¢0.5400 at the end of 2007, suggesting that
investors continue to bid lower for the stock.

The stock's price, however, is expected to improve with recentimprovements in HFC's business.
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3.16

3.17

3.18.

Dividend Payment History

The table below shows the dividend payment record for HFC over the last five years

2006 2005 2004
Dividend Paid (GH¢'m) 1.63 0.73 1.27
Dividend pershare (GH¢) 0.0045 0.0085 0.0070
Payout Ratio 44% 64% 53%

Dividend Policy

HFC's current dividend policy, is to ensure that dividend payment shall normally not exceed 45% of the
average of thelastthreeyears (includingthe currentyear) profit aftertax.

Housing Bond Issues

HFC made a shelf registration of USD 35.0 million bonds on the GSE on September 17, 1996. On August
13,2002, the Bank again made a shelf registration of GBP1.20 million bonds on the GSE.

Between 1996 and 2004, out of the USD 35.0milion Shelf Registered bonds, a total of USD 16.74 million
bonds have been issued in tranches, while GBP 1.2 million was issued fully under the HFC Housbonds
Series F. The various Issues are shownin the table below:

Tranche Year Amount Year of Status
Issued Raised Maturity

HFCHousbond Series A 1996 usD 2,700,000 2001 Redeemed
HFCHousbond Series B 1997 USD 2,268,000 2002 Redeemed
HFCHousbond Series C 1998 usD 2,000,000 2003 Redeemed
HFCHousbond Series D 1999 usD 2,727,000 2004 Redeemed
HFCHousbond Series E 2000 usD 1,511,700 2005 Redeemed
HFCHousbond Series F 2001 GBP 1,200,000 2006 Redeemed
HFCHousbond Series G 2001 uUsD 3,032,600 2006 Redeemed
HFCHousbond SeriesH 2004 usD 2,501,000 2009 Due November 2009

HFCHousbond Series) 2007 usD 3,900,000 2012 Due March 2012
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PART 4
USE OF FUNDS AND BUSINESS OUTLOOK

4.1 Introduction

4.2

4.3

The improving macro-economic situation and the free market regulatory regime of the Bank of Ghana
coupled with the stable political and peaceful social environment of the country has led to a healthy and
vigorous competition in the banking and the financial services industry. The introduction of off-shore
banking and other reforms soon to be introduced into the banking sector and the financial services
industry generally are expected to increase the level of competition among the playersin the industry.

As the number of players increase and competition becomes more intense, it is the ability of a service
provider to anticipate the needs of customers and deliver custom-made products and services to
market them in an efficient manner that will ensure its survival and progress.

The Directors and Management of HFC Bank recognize the opportunities and challenges presented by
these developments and have accordingly devised the strategies and plans to ensure that the Bank not
only survives the competition but grows to be among the leaders in the industry, using state-of-the-art
technology to provide customer-oriented service to customers and value creation for the shareholder.

Broad Objectives
The key objectives of the HFC Bank strategic plan are to:

To grow the size of the Bank from the 13th position in the industry in terms of operating assets to 7th
position, by end of 2010.

To maintain leadership in Mortgage Finance with not less than 50% of industry home loans throughout
the plan period.

Toimprove the bank's share of industry deposits from 0.9% to 5% by the end of 2010.

To regain our leadership in the Fund Management business with the largest fund value by the end of
2010.

Planned Investments

Toimplement the key objectives outlined above, HFC has put in place an investment plan to be executed
over the next five years. The plan focuses on four areas that the Directors and Management believe will
lead in the development of the Bank's capacity to deliver the highest quality service to customers and
create value foritsshareholders. These keyareasare:

i Expansion of the branch network of the Bank: The Bank plans to expand its branch network in the
country and also open representative offices in the United States of America and the United
Kingdom. More branches of the Bank need to be opened or reconfigured to improve access for its
valued customers, especially to the mortgage and investment banking products offered by the
bank.
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Acquisition and Deployment of Information Technology Infrastructure: This is to provide the
platform for enhanced electronic banking with secured single sign-on transactional capabilities
thatallow the customer to conveniently access the entire range of services offered by the Bank. In
order to realize the full benefits of automating its systems and processes, HFC needs to upgrade its
information and communication installations. Currently, only five of the twelve branches, Legon,
Tema, Techiman, Kumasi and Ridge, have ATMs. The Bank needs to install ATMs at all its branches
and any new branch that will be opened.

Increase in Working Capital: To increase the capital base of the bank to such level as will enable it
meet the demands of large corporate bodies.

Employee Development and Retention: A competent, dedicated, committed and loyal workforce
is crucial to the attainment of the targets indicated in the Strategic Plan of the Bank. The Bank will
therefore commit additional resources to training and development programmes to equip staff
with requisite skills and knowledge and also institute motivation packages that will ensure
reduction of staff turnover.

The funds being raised under the Rights Issue will however be used for the expansion of HFC's branch
network and also for the upgrade of the bank's Information and Communication Technology among
others,
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PART 5
FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

5.1 Reporting Accountants' Report on Historical Financial Statements
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5.2 Historical Financial Statements

5.2.1 Historical Profit and Loss Account

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS FOR THE FIVE-YEAR PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(All amounts are expressed in thousands of cedis)

Notes 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Interest income 1 126,499,353 98,704,830 98,770,923 83,636,000 52,900,805
Interest expense 2 (61,495,626)  (46,928,007)  (48,412,936) (43,365,505)  (30,779,508)
Net interest income 65,003,727 51,776,823 50,357,987 40,270,495 22,121,297
Fee and commission income 13,254,249 6,598,534 2,503,304 813,147 478,360
Other operating income 3 3,052,376 490,802 3,970,920 1,131,989 3,460,998
Operating income 81,310,352 58,866,159 56,832,211 42,215,631 26,060,655
Operating expenses 4 (58,667,366)  (49,582,637)  (32,831,222) (20,580,707)  (13,749,932)
Bad and doubtful debts expense 14 (6,338,391) (1,617,948) (2,288,395) (4,518,751) (3,113,899)
Operating profit 16,304,595 7,665,574 21,712,594 17,116,173 9,196,824
Other income 6 1,050,602 469,768 882,480 1,721,895 436,739
Adjustment - - - (1,297,550) -
Adjusted other income - - - 424,345 436,739
Profit before national reconstruction levy

and tax 17,355,197 8,135,342 22,595,074 17,540,518 9,633,563
National reconstruction levy 7 (857,786) (430,207) (1,694,631) (941,903) (88,065)
Profit before Tax 16,497,411 7,705,135 20,900,443 16,598,615 9,545,498
Income Tax Expense 8 (4,289,205) (535,869) (4,579,241) (40,201) (995,340)

Profit after tax transferred to income

surplus accounts 12,208,206 7,169,266 16,321,202 16,558,414 8,550,158

Income Surplus Account

Balance at 1 January 296,285 9,591,029 10,861,833 11,196,859 7,395,984

Profit for the year 12,208,206 7,169,266 16,321,202 16,558,414 8,550,158
12,504,491 16,760,295 27,183,035 27,755,273 15,946,142

Transfer to statutory reserve fund 28 (6,104,103) (3,584,633) (8,160,601) (8,927,982) (1,282,524)

Transfer from capital surplus account - - - - 803,581

Transfer to housing development fund 30 (610,410) (358,463) (816,6006) (892,798) (427,508)

Transfer to stated capital - (7,946,914) -

Proposeddividend for the year 9 (5,591,300) (4,574,000) (8,615,345) (7,072,660) (3,842,832)

Balance at 31 December 198,678 296,285 9,590,483 10,861,833 11,196,859
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5.2.2 Historical Balance Sheet

BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31,

(All amounts are expressed in thousands of cedis)

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Assets
Cash and balances with Bank of Ghana 10 68,648,623 19,495,573 35,436,326 6,265,717 -
Due from other banks 11 54,253,120 41,008,142 48,765,627 29,040,571 6,146,321
Government securities 12 216,960,353 253,283,538 195,987,726 92,694,705 52,920,297
Interest receivable and other assets 13 19,834,275 35,257,795 16,642,594 31,729,859 5,665,600
Loans and advances to customers 14 659,341,614 297,683,985 230,538,976 213,752,925 224,307,196
Investment securities 15 3,427,245 3,877,913 1,322,120 1,915,394 988,128
Other short term investments 16 6,090,571 16,788,217 34,920,881 110,287,857 33,104,831
Investment in subsidiary and associated
companies 17 5,344,992 3,344,992 1,497,727 1,497,727 1,647,728
Property and equipment 34,305,670 32,903,591 27,942,800 23,294,577 19,253,090
Investment properties - - - - -
Tax 4,108,588 908,732 437,571 1,419,583 193,442
Total assets 22 1,072,315,051 704,552,478 93,492,348 511,898,915 344,226,633
Liabilities
Cash and balances with Bank of Ghana 10 - - - - 194,753
Customer deposits 20 554,761,676 280,262,315 172,891,296 107,831,877 33,475,012
Due to banks and other financial institution® 40,000,000 - - 8,571,000 -
Interest payable and other liabilities 21 32,965,863 23,882,978 17,606,918 15,104,768 8,594,109
Deferred tax 23 2,106,763 2,058,063 2,476,264 - 47,445
Long term bonds 24 263,108,092 284,891,519 271,361,860 248,397,891 242,692,178
Long term loans 25 71,204,719 8,114,059 32,123,781 42,932,340 2,497,414
Total liabilities 964,147,113 599,208,934 496,460,119 422,837,876 287,500,911
Shareholders' funds
Stated capital 27 70,252,387 70,252,387 46,791,949 46,526,616 25,894,182
Income surplus account 198,678 296,285 9,590,483 10,861,833 11,196,859
Statutory reserve fund 28 31,325,544 25,221,441 21,636,808 13,476,207 4,548,225
Capital surplus a ccount 29 5,463,662 5,463,662 11,644,320 11,644,320 11,644,320
Housing development assistance fund 30 679,115 68,705 3,327,059 2,510,999 1,618,201
Share deals acc ount 31 248,552 4,041,064 4,041,610 4,041,064 1,823,935
Total shareholders' funds 108,167,938 105,343,544 97,032,229 89,061,039 56,725,722
Total liabilities and shareholders' funds 1,072,315,051 704,552,478 593,492,348 511,898,915 344,226,633
Acceptance and guarantees 32 9,940,851 1,802,803 2,343,869 - -

The accounting policies and notes on pages 45 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.



® HFC BANK| RIGHTS ISSUE CIRCULAR

5.2.3 Historical Cash Flow Statement

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE FIVE-YEAR PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

(All amounts are expressed in thousands of cedis)

Notes 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Operating activities
Net cash generated from operating activities 35 (826,841) 80,985,466 124,331,902 114,270,967 51,646,177
Interest paid (5,894,625) (9,007,415) (8,492,754) (8,916,294) (8,584,243)
Tax paid 22 (7,780,358) (2,137,741) (1,528,201) (1,266,342) (1,145,500)
Net cash generated from operating activities (14,501,824) 69,840,310 114,310,947 104,088,331 41,916,434
Investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment 19 (10,805,212) (7,384,235) (8,154,672) (7,139,521) (1,745,842)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 19 115,564 1,247,853 66,000 44,582 1,564,699
Sale /(Purchase) of government securities 28,190,249 (64,328,836)  (88,386,012) (42,751,288) (35,756,978)
Sale/(Purchase) of other investments 9,449,060 20,266,284 77,079,736 (77,183,025) (16,013,211)
Equity investments 15 (943,481) (2,555,793) - (1,600,000) (1,000,000)
Bond repayment - - 593,274 672,734 11,872
Investment securities repayment 15 450,668 - - - -
Proceeds from sale of investment property 18 1,001,550 - - - -
Purchase of investment property 18 (750,348) (909,003) 128,082 - -
Net cash generated from/ (used in) investing
activities 26,708,050 (53,663,730) (18,673,592)  (127,956,518)  (52,939,460)
Financing activities
Dividend paid 9 (4,574,000) (8,615,345) (7,072,660) (3,824,832) (2,528,055)
Redemption of bonds 24 (48,748,281) (11,167,949)  (25,139,306) (17,784,630) (14,012,215)
Proceeds from the issue of bonds 24 - - 18,621,889 - 10,489,934
Repayment of loans/ Loans Received 25 (5,986,065) (24,009,722) (10,808,559) 40,434,926 -
Loan drawdown 25 69,076,725 - - - -
Proceeds from the sale of shares in associate 17 - 152,735 - - -
Proceeds from rights issue - - - - 17,628,901
Investment in HFC Brokerage - (1,000,000) - - -
Proceeds from share options exercised 37 - 252,387 265,333 20,054,180 -
Purchase of own shares - - - (361,408) -
(Purchase)/Proceeds from the issue of treasury 30 (3,792,512) _ _ 2,578,537 36,124
shares
Proceeds from share options - - - 578,254 171,280
Net cash generated from financing activities 5,975,867 (44,387,894) (24,133,303) 41,675,027 11,785,969
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash balances 18,182,093 (28,211,314) 71,504,052 17,806,840 762,943
Movement in cash and cash equivalents
At 1 January 70,807,404 99,018,718 27,514,666 9,114,918 8,351,975
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 18,182,093 (28,211,314) 71,504,052 17,806,840 762,943

At 31 December 88,989,497 70,807,404 99,018,718 26,921,758 9,114,918
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5.2.4 Notes to the Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts are expressed in thousands of cedis)

1 Interest income

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Commercial loans and advances 46,850,637 11,121,988 10,808,806 4,571,456 6,148,601
Mortgage loans 43,296,045 39,185,419 33,142,934 33,906,692 30,868,306
Government securities 36,132,277 45,936,746 54,544,121 44,930,587 15,745,502
Cash and short terms funds 220,394 2,460,677 275,062 227,265 138,396

126,499,353 98,704,830 98,770,923 83,636,000 52,900,805

2 Interest expense

Bonds 36,854,964 31,479,556 39,991,739 28,357,485 28,982,455
Loans 2,082,103 1,084,188 1,550,777 1,844,685 -
Time and other deposits 22,558,559 14,364,263 6,870,420 13,163,335 1,797,053

61,495,626 46,928,007 48,412,936 43,365,505 30,779,508

3 Other operating income

Gain on exchange 2,730,298 295,747 3,447,046 866,204 2,621,534
IDA grant income - - - 47,445 69,357
Others 322,078 195,055 523,874 218,340 770,107

3,052,376 490,802 3,970,920 1,131,989 3,460,998

4 Operating expenses

The following items are included within operating expenses:

Staff costs 22,748,094 21,690,214 11,628,335 6,157,751 5,322,178
Depreciation (note 19) 7,903,077 6,175,053 3,121,093 3,076,285 1,565,268
Directors” emoluments 2,533,959 4,221,870 3,456,020 1,755,573 1,058,585
Auditors’ remuneration 220,000 195,000 140,000 100,000 70,000
Amount spent on fulfilling social _
Responsibility 121,175 200,195 235,784 166,591 43,960

5 Staff costs

Wages and salaries 11,550,781 11,821,037 6,742,595 3,232,048 2,952,977
Social security benefits 1,675,445 1,475,534 1,206,561 753,281 527,275
Other staff benefits 9,521,868 8,393,643 3,679,179 2,172,422 1,841,926

22,748,094 21,690,214 11,628,335 6,157,751 5,322,178

The average number of persons employed by the group during 2006 was 185 (2005: 145)
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6 Other income
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2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Profit on disposal of assets 115,564 42,299 66,000 22,833 439,739
Sundry income 935,038 427,469 816,480 401,512 -
Profit on issue of treasury shares - - - 1,297,550 -
Adjustment - - - (1,297,550) -
1,050,602 469,768 882,480 424,345 439,739
7 National reconstruction levy
The national reconstruction levy is assessed under the National Reconstruction Levy 2002 (Act 579) at 5%
and 1.5% on profit before tax for the bank and subsidiary respectively.
Balance Charge for the  Payments during the year Balance
year
1/1/ 31/12/
2006 - 857,786 (534,581) 323,205
2005 (159,492) - - (159,492)
2004 549,881 - - 549,881
2003 - 941,903 (766,350) 175,553
2002 - 88,065 (88,005)
8 Tax
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Current tax 4,240,505 954,070 1,829,232 905,944 701,460
Deferred tax (Note 23) 48,700 (418,201) 2,750,009 (865,743) 293,880
4,289,205 535,869 4,579,241 40,201 995,340
9 Dividend
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
At 1 January 4,574,000 8,615,345 7,072,660 3,842,832 2,528,055
Proposed dividend 5,591,300 4,574,000 8,615,345 7,072,660 3,842,832
10,165,300 13,189,345 15,688,005 10,915,492 6,370,887
Dividend paid (4,574,000) (8,615,345) (7,072,660)  (3,842,832) (2,528,055)
At 31 December 5,591,300 4,574,000 8,615,345 7,072,660 3,842,832

Payment of dividend is subject to the deduction of withholding taxes at a rate of 10%.
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Cash balances with Bank of Ghana

Cash in hand

Balances with Bank of Ghana
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2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
19,479,392 6,422,055 5,114,428 3,178,792 581,604
46,169,231 13,073,518 30,321,898 3,086,925 (776,357)
68,648,623 19,495,573 35,436,326 6,265,717 (194,753)

Balances with Bank of Ghana represents the mandatory reserve deposit of ¢3,087 million. These funds are not
available for use in the bank’s day-to-day operations and do not attract interest.

Due from other banks

Placements

Government securities
Treasury bills and bond

Maturing within 90 days of the date of
acquisition

Maturing after 90 days of the date of
acquisition

Treasury bonds

Government of Ghana Index Linked
Bonds (GGILB)

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
54,253,120 41,008,142 48,765,627 29,040,571 6,146,321
3,447,207 9,473,010 15,093,479 186,470 3,163,350
5,382,739 64,310,528 107,977,184 92,508,235 49,756,947
206,130,407 170,000,000 63,417,063 - -
2,000,000 9,500,000 9,500,000 - -
216,960,353 253,283,538 195,987,726 92,694,705 52,920,297

Investment in GGILB and bonds represents the minimum amount needed to meet the mandatory secondary reserve requirements of the
Bank of Ghana. Index-linked bonds have a maturity of three years and are issued at coupon rates ranging from 4.5% to 5%. The principal
and coupon rates have been adjusted to take account of inflation as specified in the information memoranda issued by the Bank of Ghana.
The bonds are two and three years fixed and floating rate instruments introduced by the Bank of Ghana during the year. Treasury bills are
debt securities issued by the Bank of Ghana for a term of three months, six months or a year and are classified as available for-sale

investments. Bills are carried at their face value less unearned interest.

Interest receivable and other assets

Receivable and prepayments
Accrued interest receivable

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
9,536,550 29,044,774 7,558,283 15,935,297 4,335,042
10,297,725 6,213,021 9,084,311 15,794,562 1,330,558
19,834,275 35,257,795 16,642,594 31,729,859 5,665,600
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Loans and advances to customers

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Analysis by type of customer
Individuals 398,424,732 207,082,358 198,414,729 207,756,566 211,436,034
Private enterprises 277,805,654 104,555,808 43,904,378 16,930,489 18,158,401
Staff 5,565,959 4,288,589 3,355,985 2,141,259 176,003
Gross loans and advances 681,796,345 315,926,755 245,656,092  226,828314 231,354,466
Less provision for impairment:
Specific provisions (17,853,942)  (12,129,966)  (13,537,080)  (11,394,026)  (7,047,270)
General provision (3,956,813) (3,342,398) (317,336) (171,995) -
Interest in suspense (643,976) (2,770,406) (1,281,700)  (1,509,368) -
Analysis by type of advance
Commercial loans 402,210,226 91,496,388 171,944,704 8,772,844 7,368,515
Construction finance 8,308,440 18,276,048 30,454,050 16,930,489 18,158,401
Staff loans 5,565,959 4,288,589 3,355,985 2,141,259 1,760,031
Mortgage loans 260,216,715 193,542,302 194,670,353 198,983,722 204,067,519
Other Advances 5,495,005 8,323,428 - - -
Gross loans and advances 681,796,345 315,926,755 245,675,092 226,828,314 231,354,466
Less provision for impairment:
Specitfic provisions (17,853,942) (12,129,966) (13,537,080) (11,394,026) (7,047,270)
General provision (3,956,813) (3,342,398) (317,336) (171,995) .
Interest in suspense (643,976) (2,770,406) (1,281,700) (1,509,368) -
659,341,614 297,683,985 230,538,976 213,752,925 224,307,196
The maximum level of staff indebtedness during 2006 did not exceed ¢5,566 million (2005: ¢5,000 million)
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Analysis by business segments:
Housing 261,752,850 201,865,730 198,894,652 202,129,667 205,827,550
Construction 15,703,763 32,412,932 38,990,946 15,986,872 18,158,401
Commerce and finance 404,339,732 81,648,093 7,790,304 8,711,775 7,368,515
Gross loans and advances 681,796,345 315,926,755 245,676,092 226,828,314 231,354,466
Less provision for impairment:
Specific provisions (17,853,942) (12,129,966) (13,537,080) (11,394,026) (7,047,270)
General provision (3,956,813) (3,342,398) (317,336) (171,995) .
Interest in suspense (643,976) (2,770,406) (1,281,700) (1,509,368) -
659,341,614 297,683,985 230,538,976 213,752,925 224,307,196
Loans and advance to customers (continued)
The movement in mortgage loans is as follows:
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
At 1 January 184,872,518 184,807,632 193,698,455 197,954,246 186,513,841
Disbursements during year 54,557,149 17,362,732 13,451,285 29,740,935 31,218,350
Interest charged 37,442,830 24,111,042 19,595,944 20,990,578 18,990,005
Exchange difference 25,076,300 13,808,136 14,255,296 13,701,003 14,801,314
Inflation adjustment 27,853,215 14,242,956 13,312,799 1,451,949 11,887,731
329,802,012 254,332,498 254,313,779 273,838,711 263,411,241
Less: Repayments (69,585,297)  (60,790,196)  (59,643,427)  (74,854,989)  (59,343,722)
260,216,715 193,542,302 194,670,352 198,983,722 204,067,519
Bad and doubtful debts expense (14,184,987) (8,669,784) (9,862,720) 5285267)  (6,113,273)
At 31 December 246,031,728 184,872,518 184,807,632 93,698,455 197,954,246
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The movement in provisions for bad and doubtful debts is follows:

Specific credit General Total
risk provision

Year ended 31 December 2006
At 1 January 2006 12,129,966 3,342 15,472,364
Doubtful debts expense 5,723,976 614,415 6,338,391
At 31 December 2006 17,853,942 3,956,813 21,810,755
Year ended 31 December 2005
At 1 January 2005 13,537,080 317,336 13,854,416
Doubtful debts expense (1,407,114) 3,025,062 1,617,948
At 31 December 2005 12,129,966 3,342,398 15,472,364
Year ended 31 December 2004
At 1 January 2004 11,394,026 171,995 11,566,021
Doubtful debts expense 2,143,054 145,341 2,288,395
At 31 December, 2004 13,537,080 317,336 13,854,416
Year ended 31 December 2003
At 1 January 2003 7,047,270 - 7,047,270
Doubtful debts expense 4,346,756 171,995 4,518,751
At 31 December 2003 11,394,026 171,995 11,566,021
Year ended 31 December 2002
At January 2002 3,933,371 - 3,933,371
Bad and Doubtful debts expense 3,113,899 - 3,113,899
At 31 December 2002 7,047.270 R 7,047,270

All loans have been written down to their estimated recoverable amount. The aggregate amount of non-performing
loans on which interest was not being accrued amounted to ¢14,138 million. Unrecognized interest related to such

loans amounted to ¢4,251 million.

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Loan loss provision ratio 3% 4% 6% 5% 3%
Gross non-performing loans ratio 2% 2% 1% 1% 1%

Ratio of 50 largest exposures 40% 13% 23% 24% 23%
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2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Investment securities

Debt securities 3,427,245 3,877,913 1,322,120 1,915,394 988,128

Investment securities are classified as available-for-sale investments. This is in respect of Prudential Bank Limited Bond.
The Bond attracts a variable interest rate of 182 day treasury bill rate plus 2%. The movement in investment securities
is as follows:

At 1 January 3,877,913 1,322,120 1,915,394 988,128 -

Additions - 2,555,793 - 1,600,000 1,000,000

3,877,913 3.877913 1,915,394 2,588,128 1,000,000
Redemption (450,668) - (593,274) (672,734) (11,872)

At 31 December 3427245 3877913 1,322,120 1,915,394 988,128

Other short-term investments

Treasury dealings 1,589,176 6,774,385 5,930,161 93,421,567 19,761,488
Units and investments 4,501,395 10,013,832 28,990,720 16,866,290 13,343,343
Fixed deposit - - - -

6,090,571 16,788,217 34,920,881 110,287,857 33,104,831

Investments in subsidiary and associated companies

Investment in subsidiary 4,100,000 2,100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Investment in associated companies 1,244,992 1,244,992 1,397,727 1,397,727 1,547,728

5,344,992 3,344,992 1,497,727 1,497,727 1,647,728

The subsidiary is incorporated in the Republic of Ghana. Investments in associated companies represent equity shares in
Gambia HFC and University of Ghana UG HFC.

HFC Investments Services Limited during 2006 invested ¢2 billion in HFC Brokerage Services Limited. The
consolidated financial statements do not include the results of HFC Brokerage Services Limited, because the directors of
the company are of the opinion that the operations of HFC Brokerage Services Limited are insignificant compare to HFC
Investments Services Limited.

Investment properties
Investment properties are stated at cost. If investment properties were stated at fair values, the amount would have been

¢1,750 million (2005: ¢841 million; 2003: ¢969 million; 2002: ¢927 million). Fair values have been determined on the
basis of directors' valuation.




Property and equipment

The Bank
Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2006

Additions

Transfer between
related parties

Disposals

Transfers

At 31 December 2006

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 January 2006
Charges for the year

Transfer between
related parties

Release on Disposals
At 31 December 2006
Net book value

At 31 December 2006
At 31 December 2005
At 31 December 2004
At 31 December 2003

At 31 December 2002

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

Profit on disposal
of fixed assets

Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Sale proceeds

Profit on disposal
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Land and Computers and Furniture and Motor Capital work in
buildings equipment fittings vehicles progress Total
22,349,422 11,173,658 11,459,629 3,818,069 194,395 48,995,173
216,693 1,619,546 2,901,145 166,451 4,461,955 9,365,790
- - - (173,246) - (173,246)
- - - (74,953) - (74,953)
901,767 1,058,842 352,856 541,737 (2,855,202) _
23,467,882 13,852,046 14,713,630 4,278,058 1,801,148 58,112,764
1,084,671 8,884,896 3,955,108 2,166,905 - 16,091,580
450,641 4,013,277 2,578,451 860,708 - 7,903,077
- - - (112,610) - (112,610)
- - - (74,953) - (74,953)
1,535,312 12,898,173 6,533,559 2,840,050 - 23,807,094
21,932,570 953,873 8,180,071 1,438,008 1,801,148 34,305,670
21,264,751 2,288,760 7,504,521 1,651,164 194,395 32,903,591
15,605,222 5,916,725 3,138,055 3,209,992 72,806 27,942,800
14,172,405 4,112,428 601,675 2,366,630 2,041,439 23,294,577
13,790,392 4,041,357 532,707 888,634 - 19,253,090
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
4,005,453 4,005,453 3,503,555 3,503,555 2,835,719
(546,675) (506,620) (426,511) (356,440) (293,048)
3,458,778 3,498,833 3,077,044 3,147,115 2,542,671
74,953 1,489,107 45,717 167,774 1,291,735
(74,953) (283,553) (45,717) (146,025) (163,775)
- 1,205,554 - 21,749 1,127,960
(115,564) (1,247,853) (66,000) (44,582) (1,564,699)
(115,564) (42,299) (66,000) (22,833) 436,739
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2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Customer deposits
Demand deposits 133,094,508 61,680,406 66,368,535 6,434,876 -
Savings deposits 116,952,335 71,206,691 10,921,216 - -
Forex deposit - - - 5,193,123 1,087,533
HFC housbills/housnotes - - - 50,284,842 17,196,641
Time deposits 305,665,822 147,375,218 95,610,545 45,919,036 15,190,838
554,461,676 280,262,315 172,891,296 107,831,877 33,475,012
Analysis by type of deposits
Individual/private enterprise 443,809,341 206,174,135 97,035,946 - -
Public enterprise 110,952,335 74,088,180 75,855,350 . ;
554,761,676 280,262,315 172,891,296 - -
Ratio of 20 largest deposits to total deposits 35% 31%
Interest payable and other liabilities
Creditors 16,853,966 15,088,645 5,470,604 2,691,128 2,957,025
Accrued interest 10,356,884 4,379,825 2,971,088 5,165,427 1,794,252
National reconstruction levy 163,713 -159,492 549,881 175,553 -
Dividend payable (Note 9) 5,591,300 4,574,000 8,615,345 7,072,660 3,842,832
32,965,863 23,882,978 17,606,918 15,104,768 8,594,109
Tax
The Bank
Charge /
(credit) for the Balance
Balance 1/1/06 year Payments during year 31/12/06
Current tax
Tax year
2002 (785,440) - (167,576) (953,016)
2003 - 905,944 (1,098,766) (192,822)
2004 (437,571) - - (437,571)
2005 (908,732) - - (908,732)
2006 - 4,240,505 (7,440,361) (3,199,856)
(2,131,743) 5,146,449 (8,706,703) (5,691,997)
Deferred income tax
Deferred income taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using a principal tax rate
of 25% (2005: 25%) for the bank and the subsidiaries. The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
At 1 January 2,058,063 2,476,264 (273,745) 591,998 298,118
Income statement charge/(credit) for year 48,700 (418,201) 2,750,009 (865,743) 293,880
At 31 December 2,106,763 2,058,063 2,476,264 (273,745) 591,998
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Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax charge /(credit) in the profit and loss account comprise the following temporary difference

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Property and equipment 2,418,326 1,016,731 592,086 31,044 -
Long term bonds - (4,852,394) 226,317 - -
Mortgage loans 354,471 3,417,462 1,931,606 1,291,603 3,788,845
Short term investments - - 220,100 -
2,772,797 (418,201) 2,750,009 1,542,747 3,788,845
Deferred income tax assets
Property and equipment _ B ~ ~ 510.185
Long term bonds (666,034) 1,816,492 2,686,662
(666,034) - - 1,816,492 3,196,847
2,106,763 (273,745) 591,998

The deferred income tax charge / (credit) in the profit and loss account comprise the following temporary differences.
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Property and equipment (221,951) - - 541,229 (808,303)
Long term bonds (109,667) - - 870,171 (2,686,662)
Mortgage loans 380,318 - - (2,497,243) 3,788,845
Short term investments - - - 220,100 -

48,700 - - (865,743) 293,880

The potential tax effect related to the increase in the carrying values of land and buildings unrealized exchange gains arising
from the translation of mortgages denominated in foreign currencies payable after seven years is ¢5,867 million
(2005: ¢2,500 million) and ¢6,269 million respectively.

Deferred credit

Deferred credit represents the balance on capital based grants. Movement on the deferred credit account is as follows:

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
At 1 January - - - 47,445 116,802
Transfer to profit and loss account - (47,445) (69,357)
At 31 December - - - - 47,445

53
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24 Long term bonds (continued)

At 1 January

Issues during the year

Interest charged

Exchange loss

Inflation adjustment

Redemptions

Interest paid

At 31 December

Analysis by type of bond

Ghana Government bond
(Note(i) below)

Social Security & National Insurance Trust
bonds (Note (ii))
HFC — Unit Trust

Total cedi bonds (Note (iii))
HFC dollar housbonds (Note (iv))
HFC sterling housbonds (Note (v))

Balance at 31 December

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
284,891,519 271,361,860 248,397,891 242,692,178 208,110,050
- - 18,621,889 - 10,489,934
6,017,347 6,519,133 7,719,185 10,750,841 8,092,180
2,664,135 2,225,467 5,300,584 4,049,152 17,706,197
24,177,997 24,960,423 24954371 17,606,644 20,890,275

317,750,998 305,066,883 304,993,920 275,098,815 265,288,636

(48,748,281)  (11,167,949)  (25,139,306)  (17,784,630) (14,012,215)

(5,894,625)  (9,007,415)  (8,492,754) (8,916,294) (8,584,243)

263,108,092 284,891,519 271,361,860 248,397,891 242,692,178

71,216,889 64,523,469 57,401,371 49,362,324 44,034,248

168,770,480 151285903 133,447,578 115,738,100 103,245,549

- - - 534,750 748,733

239,987,369 215,809,372 190,848,949 165,635,174 148,028,530

23,120,723 50,252,695 59,635,803 63,945,175 78,595,960

- 18,829,452 20,877,108 18,817,542 16,067,688

263,108,092 284,891,519 271,361,860 248,397,891 242,692,178




® HFC BANK| RIGHTS ISSUE CIRCULAR 55

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts are expressed in thousands of cedis)

25 Long term bonds
i Ghana Government bond
The International Development Association (IDA) has made available to the Government of Ghana (GoG) a
credit of US$70 million for the Urban II project. GoG has on-lent an amount of US$7 million from the
proceeds of the credit to HFC Bank (Ghana) Limited for home mortgage financing. The term of the bond is
30 years. These are fully indexed to inflation and attract interest at the rate of 1% per annum.

ii. Social Security and National Insurance Trust Bonds
The Social Security and National Insurance Trust bonds are made up on uncompleted Housing Scheme and
Pilot Scheme bonds.

(a) Uncompleted Housing Scheme
A loan of ¢2,000 million was contracted to finance the Uncompleted Housing Scheme. The loan,
which is fully indexed to inflation, has a 20 year maturity period and attracts interest at the rate of
1.5% per annum on amounts drawn-down. The initial disbursement was made in 1993.

(b) Pilot Scheme
Social Security and National Insurance Trust (SSNIT) have lent the cedi equivalent of US$16.2 million
to the Bank for the implementation of the Home Finance Pilot Scheme. The loan, which has
20 year term, is fully indexed to inflation and attracts interest at the rate of 1% per annum

iii. HFC Dollar Housbond
HFC Bank (Ghana) Limited made a shelf registration of US$35 million bonds on the Ghana Stock
Exchange on 17 September 1996. The issued bonds have a maturity of five years and investors have the
option to redeem their holdings at a discount value of US$98.25 million for every US$ 100 at the time of the
second year of issue. The bonds are listed and traded on the Ghana Stock Exchange. At 31 December 2006,
US$2.5 million HFC dollar housbonds (2005: US$ 5.1 million) where outstanding.

iv. HFC Sterling Housbonds
HFC Bank (Ghana) Limited made a shelf registration of £1.2 million bonds on the Ghana Stock Exchange.
The issue bonds have a maturity of five years and investors has the option to redeem their holdings at a
discount value of £98.80 for every £100 at the end of the second year of issue. The bonds are also callable at
the end of the second year at a premium of £101.20 and were listed and traded on the Ghana Stock
Exchange. These bonds were fully redeemed in August 2006. (2005: £1.2 million)

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
IDA 2,127,994 2,055,272 2,024,698 2,497,414 2,497,414
SSNIT Loan 23,025,575 - - - -
Ghana International Bank (GIB) 46,051,150 6.058,787 30,099,083 40,434,926 -
71,204,719 8,114,059 32,123,781 42,932,340 2,497,414

The movement on long term loans is as follows:
At 1 January 8,114,059 32,123,781 42,932,340 2,497,414 2,497,414
Draw downs - - - 40,434,926 -
Addition 69,076,725 - - - -

Repayment

At 31 December (-5,986,065)

71,204,719 32,123,781 42,932,340 42,932,340 2,497,414
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Pannell Kemr Farster PKF

Iha Seard af Directars

F*.n‘.?ﬂunmnla E
HFC Bank (Ghana) Limitad business advisers
Private Mall Bag
Genaral Post Office
Acora

132 February 2008

Dear Sir,

HFC BANK [GHANA) LIMITED

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON

THE UNALIDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OF HFC BANK [GHANA) LIMITED FOR THE

MNINE MONTH PERIOD ENDED 30 SEFTEMBER 2007

We hawve reviowed the unaudited fingnoial information of HEC Bank {Ghana) Limited sat out
in trig prospecius, compnsing he poofit and loss accoont for the nine month pencd ended
30 September 2007 and the baance sheet as ot 30 September 2007, The airectors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial informaticn.

Ve conductad our review in accordance witn Intermabional Standard oo Auciling apphcatie
to review engagements. Thie standard requires that we plan and perform be review o
obtain moderate assurance 3s o whether tne financial slatements are free of matenal
misstatements. TRe review 15 limited primarily to enguries of the Bank's personnel and
analytical procedures applied 1o fnancial data pravided to us by tha Bank.

We have nal performed an audit, and accercingly, we @2 not exXpress an adeit opinion

Based on cur review, nething has come te eur attention t™hal causes us to belisve that the
finaneal information which has been prepared in accardance with the Banke accounting
pohoes does nol give a lrue and kar view of the state of affairs of the Bank as at 30
September 2007 and of its profit for the ning month pzricd then ended.

Yours faithiully,
A-WIQW"&P??T /’z;‘:‘y.'l'?’"""
I PANNELL KERR FORSTER

CHARATERED ACCOUNTANTS

Tal: #2310 - 21 221244 | 246637 | 231218
Fan #233-21 226628, | E-mail: pannellfd u.com.gh | paarel@aficesalne.cam gh | Waebsita: wwow pef co ke
Valkay \Vigw, Famar Awenun. P G Sox 1718, fwarn, Ghana - Wiest Afrca

Farlmws. F Brovs-Tagus, M. S Sou-Svaril E 5, Telinko, SE. Wonssno
(dfipes: in Tema, Humas)

ASTLAAY ST A PR Aeswhosai Dpancens Workdanss © Lgrene e Madderanass, Yook Last Vessber a5 Sou e o bk, B Cwibbuer,
Cazevtrml modl carthaem Aureanca, Sodibteem bk, China ad Fa- Edsl dudinaia ang Mew Seaboed
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

(All amounts are expressed in the new Ghana cedis)

Period ended 30 September

The Bank
2007
Interest income 16,235,130
Interest expense (7.872.115)
Net interest income 8,363,015
Fee and commission income 2,213,128
Other operating income (53.472)
Operating income 10,522,671
Operating expenses (5,694,265)
Bad and doubtful debts expenses (1,610.647)
Operating profit 3,217,759
Other income 253,592
Profit before tax 3,471,351
Income tax expense7 (1.080.090)
Profit after tax transferred to income surplus account 2,391,261
INCOME SURPLUS ACCOUNT
Balance at 1 January 19,868
Profit for the year 2,391,261
2,411,129
Transfer to statutory reserve fund (1,195,631)
Transfer to housing development assistance fund (119.563)
Balance at 30 September 1,095,935
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BALANCE SHEET

(Al amounts are expressed in the new Ghana cedis)

Assets

Cash and balances with Bank of Ghana
Due from other banks

Government securities

Interest receivable and other assets

Loans and advances to customers

Investment securities

Other short-term investments

Investment in subsidiary and associated companies
Property and equipment

Tax

Total assets

Liabilities

Customer deposits

Due to banks and other financial institutions
Interest payable and other liabilities
Deferred tax

Long-term bonds

Long-term loans

Total liabilities

Shareholders' funds

Stated capital

Income surplus account

Statutory reserve fund

Capital surplus account

Housing development assistance fund
Share deals account

Total shareholders' funds
Total liabilities and shareholders' funds

Acceptance and guarantees

At 30 September

The Bank
2007

16,208,025
2,929,050
28,442,375
4,404,323

97,891,317
250,000
703,322
919,204

3,714,505
155,923

155,618,044

73,462,841
15,500,000
10,991,773

348,579
32,247,555
9.859.241

142,409,989

7,025,239
1,095,935
4,366,124

546,366
187,475
24,855

13,208,055
155,618,044

1,776,550
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(All amounts are expressed in the new Ghana cedis)

Period ended
30 September
2007

Operating activities
Net cash used in operations (2.035,626)
Interest paid (327,714)
Tax paid (696,651)
Net cash used in operating activities (3,059,991)
Investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment (724,361)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 3,947
Purchase of government securities (6,669,270)
Purchase of other investments (94,265)
Redemption of investment security 92,725
Net cash used in investing activities (7,.391,224)
Financing activities
Proceeds from bond 3,637,678
Dividend paid (461,277)
Long term loan drawdown 4,632,500
Equity investment (384,705)
Repayment of loan (1,893,731)
Net cash generated from financing activities 5,218,980
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (4,920,750)
Movement in cash and cash equivalents
At 1 January 8,634,895
Decrease during the period (4,920,750)

At 30 September 3,714,145
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5.3 Reporting Accountant's Report on Projected Financial Statements

Pannell Kerr Farster PKF

Accounianis &
e Onard of Directors LS BsE auly Suts

HFC Bank (GRana) Limitec
“rivaze Mal' Bag

Genesra! Post CHice

Arccra

1% Fekruary 2006

Cear 3

INDEFENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON THE
FORECAST AND PROJECTIONS OF HEC BANK (GHANA)
LIMITED FOR THE FIVE YEAR PERIOD

ENMDED 31 DECEMEER 2012

Wi nave examired the fmecast and projscticns in accosdance with tme Internatronal
Standard on Assurance Ergagemeaniz applicable 1o the axamination of prospective financial
information.

Maragement is responsible for the forccast and projgchons inchuding the assurmations sel
aut in the nates an which it is bazed

Rased or odr exemination of the evidenze supporting the assumpions, nothing has come to
cur attention which causes us to beleve that thase aseumolicnE co not provide a
reaspnable basis of the lorecast and crojections

Further, in cur apimon the [eecast and projections ars praperly preparsd on ine bas s cf the
sssumptions and s presemed n accordance with lhe Ghana Mational Accounting
Stardards

Actual rasulls arz ikaly to be different from the ferecast and projections since anticipaled
evenls freguently do not eecdr 25 cxpected and the vanaton may ba materia

_ Woars fanhiully,
_._:I .
_%_;F;r*mﬁ/ﬁ.c“ﬂ' ./?‘:‘F—qri ;é =

PAMMNELL KERR FORETER
CHARATERED ACCOUNTANTS




® HFC BANK| RIGHTS ISSUE CIRCULAR

5.4 Assumptions Underlying Projections

The headline assumptions underlying the financial projections are as follows:

Gross Domestic Product (GDP) would grow on the average at 7% per annum;

No new legislation that will adversely affect profitability of the banking industry in a material way will
be passed.

The impact of inflation rate on forecast is assumed to average 9.2% per annum.

The total income is expected to increase at an average of 32% over the forecast period;

Customer deposits are expected to increase at an average of 30% over the forecast period.

Loans and advances are expected to increase at an average of 28% over the forecast period.
Investment in government securities is expected to increase at an average of 29%.
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5.5 Projected Financial Statements

5.5.1 Projected Profit & Loss Account

PROJECTED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNTS

INCOME

Interest Income

Interest Expense

Net Interest Income
Commission & Fees
Other Operating Income
Net Operating Income
Bad Debts Provision
Operating Expenses
Net Operating Profit
Other Income

Profit before tax and Reconstruction Levy
Profit before Tax

22% Tax

Profit after Tax

2008
GH¢000
32,804
16,507
16,298
4,368
563
21,229
2,409
14,475
4,345
30
4,375
4,375

1,105

3,270

2009
¢00GH
40,181
19,427
20,754
5,183
279
26,216
1,243
18,803
6,170
26
6,197
6,197

1,363

4,834

2010
GH¢00
52,962
23,138
29,824

6,972
362
37,159
1,928
24,443
10,788
63
10,850
10,850

2,387

8,463

PROJECTED INCOME SURPLUS ACCOUNT

At 1 January
Profit for the year

Transfer to statutory reserve

Transfer to housing development assistance
Fund

Proposed dividend

578
4.834
5,412
2,417

242
1,933
820

820
8.463
9,283
4,232

423
3,385
1,243
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5.5.2 Projected Balance Sheet

PROJECTED BALANCE SHEET

2008 2009 2010

GH¢000 GH¢00 GH¢00
ASSETS
Cash & Balances with Bank of Ghana 12,347 15,377 19,317
Due from Other Banks 11,031 12,493 12,235
Government Securities 22,661 27,819 31,299
Other Short Term Investments 615 672 726
Loans & Advances to customers 150,333 205,950 270,597
Investment in subsidiary & Associated co. 1,721 1,721 1,721
2% Interest Receivable and other assets 7,357 7,504 7,654
Fixed Assets 8,436 9,352 9,266
TOTAL ASSETS 214,501 280,889 352,816
LIABILITIES
Customer Deposits 112,240 145,912 189,686
5% Interest Payable & Other Liabilities 5,384 5,740 5,352
5%  Due To Other Banks 10,909 11,454 12,027
Long Term Bonds 39,667 47,444 58,417
Long Term Loans 21,062 17,293 21,453
TOTAL LIABILITIES 189,262 227,843 286,935
SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS
Stated Capital 17,025 42,025 50,025
Capital Surplus 546 546 546
Statutory Reserve Fund 6,678 9,095 13,326
Income Surplus 578 820 1,243
Share Deals Account 249 249 249
Housing Dev't Assistance Fund 163 311 492
Total Shareholders' funds 25,240 53,046 65,882

_ Total liabilities & shareholders' funds 214,501 280,889 352,816
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5.5.23 Projected Cash Flow Statement

PROJECTED CASHFLOW STATEMENT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES: -

Loss before interest and tax

Depreciation

Profit on Fixed Assets disposal
Increase/decrease in loans and advances
(Increase)/Decrease in other assets accounts
Increase/(Decrease) in creditors & accruals
Increase in provisions

Cash generated from operations

Return on investments and servicing of finance
80% Interest received

80% Interest paid

Dividends paid

Taxation
75%  Tax paid

Investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property & equipment
(Increase)/Decrease in short term investments
Investment in subsidiaries

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Increase/(Decrease) in long term bonds and loans
Increase in deposits

Increase in stated capital

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities
Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Movement in cash and cash equivalents

At 1 January

Increase during the year
At 31 December

2008
¢' million

(10,819)
3,148

(50,135)
1,012
(34)
2,409
(54,468)
19,985
(13,205)
(1,156)

5,623
(829)

(6,872)

8,581
(686)

1,022

13,091
32,240
10,000

55,331
6,679
50,269

6,679
56,948

2009
¢' million

(13,194)
4,092

(55,617)
(147)
356
1,243
(63,266)
38,246
(15,542)
(1,308)

21,396
(1,022)

(4,377)

(5,215)
(0)

(9,592)

4,008
33,672
25,000

62,680
10,195
56,948

10,195
67,143

2010
¢' million

(16,587)
5,320
(16)
(64,647)
(150)
(389)
1,928

(74,541)
42,370
(15,219)

(1,933)

25,217

(1,790)

(4,540)
16
(3,534)

(8,059)

15,133
43,774
8,000

66,907

7,734

67,143

7,734
74,878
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PART 6
RISK FACTORS

Investing in the securities of any company exposes the investor to some risks. Before deciding to
purchase HFC ordinary shares, investors should carefully consider the following potential risks of an
investmentin the Bank, and also any relevant information contained in this document.

i Financial Risk: HFC Bank's core business of managing financial assets and liabilities exposes the
company to financial risks. These include credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign
exchange risk. HFC Bank through its sound and efficient risk management systems and
procedures has kept these risks under control.

iii. Liquidity: The additional HFC shares on offer in the Rights Issue will be listed on the GSE. There
is however the possibility that investors may not be able to sell their shares on the market at the
price they desire when they want to.

iii. Dilution: Aninvestor's holding in HFC shares may be diluted if that investor does not participate
fully in this Rights issue.

iv. Competition: The Bank operates in very dynamic and competitive financial services industry.
The Bank therefore faces an increasingly intense competition for all its products from other
service providers which can affect its financial performance. The Bank has however been able to
maintain a steady increase in market share for its commercial banking products and even gained
groundsin its flagship mortgage products.

V. Macro Economic Environment: The state of the national economy provides the context for the
financial services industry. Interest rates, the dominant variable in the industry is susceptible to
changes in inflation, currency depreciation, the size of the national debt and other macro
economic indices. Adverse movements in these variables can therefore affect the performance
of the bank and its ability to achieve set targets.

Vi. Fraud: Fraudulent practices by employees and customers can adversely affect the operations
and financial performance of the Bank. The Bank counters this risk through the adoption of
efficient verification and reporting systems.

vii. Computer Systems Failure: Computers and other information and communication
installations have inherent risks in their use. Any malfunction in the system or any of its
components could affect normal operations of the bank. This risk is mitigated by the close
monitoring of the system by competent staff.
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PART 7
THE GHANA STOCK EXCHANGE

7.1

7.2

7.3

74

Overview

The Ghana Stock Exchange (GSE) was incorporated in July 1989 as a company limited by guarantee. Itis
a non-profit, non-governmental organization governed by a thirteen (13)-member Council. Members
of the GSE include sixteen (16) Licensed Dealing Members (brokerage firms) and thirty-two (32)
Associate Members. There are also nineteen (19) Government Securities Dealers some of whom are
members of the Exchange. The Exchange is regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
under the Securities Industry law (1993) as amended by the Securities Industry (Amendment) Act, 2000,
Act 590 and the SEC Regulations 2003 (LI 1728).

Growth & Development

Trading on the Exchange began on November 12, 1990 with eleven (11) listed companies. As at
December 31,2007 there were 32 equities and two corporate bonds listed on the GSE. Also listed onthe
Exchange are the Government of Ghana 2-Year, 3-Year and 5-Year bonds issued since January 2006. To
broaden the market and also to act as a catalyst for growth of corporate enterprises, the GSE is
encouraging more companies, especially the SME's to list on the Exchange through the provisional
listing approach.

The Exchange operates a manual trading and settlement system. Under the new Central Securities
Depository Act, 2007 (Act 733), listed companies may opt to issue dematerialized securities that may be
centrally cleared through the Central Securities Depository. The GSE also introduced a new and
updated Rule Book with effect from February 2007.

Performance

The Stock Market continued its recovery from the slump of 2005 when it plunged by -29.85%. The GSE
All-Share Index rose by 31.84% in 2007, well above the 1-Year GOG/BOG Treasury Note rate of 12.30%.
Total Market Capitalisation also increased from GH¢11,249.60 million at the end of 2006 to
GH¢12,368.60million at the end of 2007. Some of the significant events which have occurred on the
exchange since January 2007 include:

® ThelListing of Golden Star Resources Limited;

® The Listing of SIC Insurance Company Limited;

® The Listing of Ghana Oil Company Limitedtd. (GOIL);

®  The De-listing of British American Tobacco Ghana Limited (BAT);

® Thesale of 100,000,000 ordinary shares to raise GH¢ 6,000,000 by Ghana Commercial Bank
through a RightsIssue.

Trading Volumes and Values

There was a marked increase in the total volume and value traded in 2007. A total of 287.22 million
shares were traded compared with 98.29 million in 2006. Value of shares traded also saw a significant
increase from GH¢47.60 millionin 2006 to GH¢140.71 millionin 2007
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7.5 Other Information

Trading Days: Monday Friday, starting at 09.00 to 12.00 noon

Continuous Auction Trading system.

Trading Method: Trading is done in lots of 100 shares

Settlement Period: Trading day plus 3 business days (T + 3)

Within two (2) months according to Section 53(1) of the
Companies' Code 1963 Act 179 (as amended)

Access to Trade and General Through Reuters, internet, official trading results,
information on the GSE local newspapers, etc.

Receipt of Certificate:

7.6  Outlook for the GSE
The stable and improving macro-economic environment (declining inflation and interest rates
etc.) and the ability of the economy to better absorb both domestic and external shocks indicate
brighter prospects for the GSE. The automation of the trading platform, migration from paper
certificates to a Depository regime and the continuing efforts at harmonization of West African
markets are expected to improve the fortunes of the GSE and attract listing of more companies
both local and from the sub-region.
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PART 8
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE OFFER

8.1

8.1.1

a)

b)

ApplicationA qualifying applicant to this Offer is either a qualifying HFC shareholder or a qualifying
non-HFCshareholder interested in acquiring HFC shares under the terms of this Offer.

Qualifying Shareholders

Qualifying shareholders are entitled to subscribe for 1 new ordinary share for every 4 ordinary share
registered in their names as at the close of business on April 30, 2008 under this Offer. The Letter of
Allotment and Application Form, which will be completed by qualifying shareholders, are enclosed in
thisdocument. Qualifying Shareholders may take any one of the following actions under this Offer:

Fully subscribe for their rights under this Offer: This is where qualifying shareholders complete the
Application Form and pay only for their entire allocation under this Offer, returning same to the
receiving agents not later than 5 pm on May 30, 2008.

Qualifying shareholders exercising this option must complete Section A of the Application Form.

Fully subscribe for their rights AND apply for additional shares outside of what they are entitled to
under the Offer: Inadditionto 1a above, qualifying shareholders may apply to subscribe for additional
shares (extra shares above what they are entitled to under this Offer) and pay for such additional shares,
returning the duly completed Application Form and payment covering both their rights and additional
shares applied forto the receiving agents not later than May 30, 2008.

Qualifying shareholders choosing this option must complete Section Aand B of the Application Form.

Partially subscribe for their rights only: Qualifying shareholders may apply for only part of the shares
they are entitled to under this Offer and return the duly completed Application Form together with
paymentto the receiving agents not later than 5 pm on May 30, 2008. Qualifying shareholders may take
no further action on their remaining rights under the Offer and empower the Directors of the Bank to
allot such unsubscribed portion of their rights as the Directors deem fit.

Qualifying shareholders must complete Section A only, of the Application Form.

Partially subscribe for their rights under the Offer and renounce their unsubscribed rights in favour of
qualifying parties, who may or may not be shareholders of HFC (renouncees): Qualifying
shareholders may apply for only part of the shares they are entitled to under this Offer, renouncing the
remainder of their rights in favour of qualifying third parties who now have to apply for and pay for
those shares. The Application Form completed by both the qualifying shareholder and the renouncee,
together with payment for the shares must be returned to the receiving agents not later than 5 pm on
May 30, 2008.

Qualifying shareholders choosing this option must complete Sections A and C while each named
renouncee must complete a copy of Section (1B) of the Application Form.

Should qualifying shareholders desire to renounce the remainder of their rights in favour of more than
one person, they should state the number of shares to be allotted to each renouncee on a separate row
in Section C of the Application form. The completed Sections A and C of the Application Form together
with payment for all the shares applied for should then be lodged with the receiving agents not later
than 5 pmon May 30, 2008.




8.1.2

8.2

® HFC BANK| RIGHTS ISSUE CIRCULAR 69

Renounce all their rights in favour of qualifying third parties, who may or may not be shareholders of
HFC: Qualifying shareholders may decide not to partake in the Offer and may renounce all their rights
under this Offer in favour of qualifying renouncees who may or may not be shareholders of HFC. The
renouncees must complete and return the Application Form together with payment for the shares
being applied forto the receiving agents not later than 5 pm on May 30, 2008.

Qualifying shareholders choosing this option must complete Sections A and C (A), while each named
renouncee mustcomplete Section C(B) of the Application Form.

Should qualifying shareholders want to renounce their rights in favour of more than one person, they
should state the number of shares to be allotted to each renouncee on a separate row in Section C (A) of
the Application Form.

Take no action: Qualifying shareholders who choose not to apply for shares under this Offer, or fail to
make payments for the shares they have applied for under this Offer, or who fail to meet the deadline of
5 pm on May 30, 2008 for returning the Application form and making payment to the receiving agents,
may be deemed to have not taken any action under this Offer. Qualifying shareholders who take no
action under these terms empower the Directors of the Bank to allot such unsubscribed rights as the
Directors deem fit.

Other Applicants

If you are neither a qualifying shareholder nor a renouncee but wish to apply for shares under the Offer,
you may complete Section D of the Application Form and return it, together with payment for the
shares applied for to any of the receiving agents not later than 5 pm on May 30, 2008.

Offer to Purchase

As an applicant, you offer to subscribe for the number of shares indicated on your Application Form on
the terms and conditions of this Offer and on the basis of the information set out in this Document and
subject tothe Regulations of HFC.

You agree that your application to acquire shares cannot be revoked after May 30, 2008 or such later
date and the Directors and Advisors may agree, and promise that cheque, banker's draft or money or
postal order will be honoured on first presentation and that this paragraph constitutes an agreement
between you and HFC. It becomes binding when your application is posted, in the case of delivery by
hand, received by the receiving agents. However the Bank will not be held liable if you use a wrong
address in posting. You must pay all bank commissions, transfer and other bank charges related to your
application.

A thumb print on an Application Form will be accepted instead of a signature thereon only if it is duly
certified inaccordance with the Laws of Ghana.

If your Application Form is not completed correctly orisamended, or if any cheque, Banker's

Draft, money or postal order is found to be less than the amount stated on your Application Form, it
may still be treated as valid. In such case, the Bank's decision as to whether to treat the application as
valid, and how to construe, amend or complete it shall be final. You will not, however, be treated as
having applied to purchase a number of shares which if multiplied by the offer price, gives a value
greater than the amount remitted.
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8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7
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An application may be rejected in whole or in part at the discretion of the Advisors and Management of
HFCif the applicationisincomplete orillegible, or if it is determined that the application is not eligible to
participate in this offer.

Acceptance of the Offer

Acceptance of the Offer will be made (if your application is received, valid, processed and not rejected)
by notifying the SEC and GSE of the basis of allocation and by notifying acceptance to the receiving
agents.

Acceptance of your offer may be of the whole or any part thereof.

If your application to purchase shares is accepted (in whole or in part) there will be a binding contract
under which you will be required to purchase the shares in respect of which your application has
been accepted.

Payment for Shares

You undertake to pay the purchase price of the shares in respect of which your application is accepted.
The cheque or banker's draft or other remittances may be presented for payment before acceptance of
your application, but this will not constitute acceptance of your application, eitherin whole orin part.

In the case of excess applications, if your application is invalid, rejected or not accepted in full, or if the
amount of the application divided by the offer price does not result in a whole number of shares, the
proceeds of the cheque or other remittances or the unused balance of those proceeds (as the case may
be) will be refunded to you without interest.

If the remittances are not honoured on first presentation, then at any time until the Bank has received
cleared funds in respect of your application, the Advisors, on behalf of HFC may terminate the
agreement to purchase that share. The termination will be effected by notifying the receiving agent
whom you submitted your application to.

Renunciation

The right to subscribe for the Rights Issue shares may be renounced in whole or in part only by
completing the Application Formin accordance with the instructions therein, or by taking no action.

Quialifying shareholders who wish to purchase some of their Rights and to renounce the remainder in
favour of a different person or persons, may complete Sections A and B of the Application form in
accordance with theinstructions provided in the guide to Completing the Application Form

Procedure in Respect of Rights not Taken up or Renounced

If a properly completed Application form and payment in full is not received by 5 pm on May 30, 2008,
the Rights will be deemed to have been declined by the shareholders. These shares will then be
available to shareholders applying for extra shares and non-shareholders applying for shares under the
Offer, and allotted by the Directors of HFC as they deem fit.

Warranties

You warrantthat:

e Youarequalifiedtoapply;
e Theapplicantonwhose behalfyou are applyingis qualified to apply;
e You will submit a complete application including all supporting documents required under the
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terms of this offer;

e Inmakingyour application you are not relying on any information or representation concerning the
Bank not contained in this document. You agree that no person responsible for this document or
any part of it will have liability for any such other information or representation

e Ifanypersonsigning, or makingathumb printonthe Application Formis not the applicant,

e that person warrants that he/she has authority to do so on behalf of the applicant and that this
authorityisvestedin himor her;

e If the applicant is other than a natural person, the person signing the Application Form warrants
that he/she has authority to do so on behalf of the applicant.

8.8 Supply and Disclosure of Information
The Bank, Directors, Advisors and their agents shall have full access to all information relating to, or
deriving from, the cheque or banker's draft or other remittance accompanying your application and its
processing. If the Directors or their agents request any information about your application you must
promptly disclose it tothem

8.9 Listing of New Ordinary Shares
The GSE has granted permission to list up to 25,432,359 New Ordinary HFC shares to be issued under the
Rights Issue on the First Official List of the GSE, alongside the existing 101,660,000 ordinary shares
listed. Itis expected that dealings in the additional shares will commence alongside the existing shares
onthe GSE by June 27,2008.

8.10 Share Certificates
Share certificates in respect of the new ordinary shares to be issued pursuant to the Rights Issue will be
posted tothe applicant by June 20, 2008

8.11 Exchange Controls
The Foreign Exchange Act 2006, (Act 723) which repealed the Exchange Control Act of 1961, Act 71
allows foreigners to hold shares of a listed company without any restrictions. Italso assures fulland free
foreign exchange transfer of original capital or principal amounts, any gains, dividends or interest
payments and related earnings and refunds in respect of investments made by non- residents in such
securities.

8.12.  Restrictions on Ownership in Banks
The Bank of Ghana has regulatory oversight of the banking industry. The Banking Act provides that a
direct or indirect acquisition or disposal of shareholdings amounting to 10% or more of the capital or
voting rights of a bank or resulting in the exercise of a significant influence over the management of a
bank may not be effected without the prior notification and approval of the Bank of Ghana.

8.13. Taxation s

e Withholding Taxon Dividend
Under current Ghanaian Tax law, all dividend payments are subject to a dividend withholding tax of 8%.
No further taxis payable on dividends received.

e Capital Gains Tax
The securities of a company listed on the GSE are currently exempt from capital gains tax in Ghana until
2010. No capital gains tax would therefore be payable on any realization of capital gains from the sale
of shares of HFCuntil 2010
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8.14

Gift Tax

Liability to gift tax may arise by gift of shares in the Bank if the open market value of the shares at the
time of the gift exceeds GH¢50.00 (subject to certain exemptions). The taxis payable by the recipient of
the gift. The applicable statutory rate varies as follows:

i.  UptoGH¢50.00 Nil
ii.  Morethan GH¢50.00 10% of excess over GH¢50.00

Stamp Duty
Under the Stamp Duty Act, 2005 (Act 689), transfer of listed shares is exempt from Stamp duty.

Corporate Tax
The Internal Revenue Act 2000, Act 592, prescribes a corporate income tax of 25% for all listed
companies.

Documents Available for Inspection
Copies of the following documents in respect of the establishment and operations of HFC Bank and the
Rights Issue may be inspected at the registered office of HFC Bank during normal business hours of any
working day during the Offer period:

iii. TheResolution passed by shareholders atthe Annual General Meeting held on April 3,2007

iv.  Resolution of the Board to allocate renounced shares to interested persons and to list the new
Shares on the GSE

v.  Theauditedfinancial reports of the Bank for the past five years

vi. TheEscrow Account Agreement

vii. TheRightslIssue Circular

viii. Financial due Diligence Report

ix. Legal Due Diligence Report
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PART 9
RECEIVING AGENTS

1. All Merchant Bank Branches at the addresses below:

Head Office/Accra Main Branch
Merban House, 44 Kwame

Nkrumah Avenue. P. O. Box 401,
Accra, Ghana. Tel. 021 666331-3

Head Office Annex./Ridge Branch
57 Examination Loop

North Ridge, Accra. Ghana

Tel. 021 251131-5

Kumasi

No. 1 Raintree Avenue

P. O. Box 8618, Ahensan-Kumasi
Tel. 051 23069, 26021

Tarkoradi

SSNIT Office Complex,

Old Accra Road. P. 0. Box 222
Takoradi. Tel. 031 23373. 24554

Adabraka

Next to Adabraka Police Station
P. O. Box 401 Accra.

Tel. 021 220952, 226112, 912067

North Industrial Area
Kuottam Building
North Industrial Area.
Tel. 021 7012841-3

Techiman

Classic FM Building

P. 0. Box TM 708

Main Techiman Highway
Abaminu, Techiman

Tema

Heavy Industrial Area
Plots No. IND/A/23/1
Private Mail Bag, Tema
Tel. 022 304099, 302399

Tema East
Near Ashiaman Roundabout
Tel. 022 304099, 302399

Bibiani

No. 23A New Town
P. O. Box 147, Bibiani
Tel. 024-422574

Koforidua

House No. 10 Broadway
North Street

Koforidua.

Tel. 081 25452, 25371

Konongo Agency
c/o Kumasi Branch
Off Kumasi Highway
Tel. 0531 24367

Tarkwa

1st Floor SIC Building
P. 0. Box TK 293

Tel. 0362 22285

Kaneshie Highway

54 Winneba Road
Kaneshie

P. O. Box 401, Accra

Tel. 021 272232, 242670

Abeka
Opsem House
Tel. 021 231766, 231781

2. All HFC Bank Branches at the addresses below:

Head Office “Ebankese”

#35, Sixth Avenue, North Ridge
P. O. Box CT 4603, Cantonments,
Accra. Tel. 021 242090-4

Ridge Branch

6 Sixth Avenue

Ridge Ambassadorial Enclave
West Ridge, Accra

Tel. 021 683891-3, 683895-9

Accra Central Branch

31-33 Kwame Nkrumah Avenue
SIC Building, Okaishie, Accra
Tel. 021 683756-9

Legon Branch (University of Ghana)
The UG-Credit Union Building
Noguchi Road

University of Ghana, Legon

Tel. 021 519154-6

Tema Branch

Asafoatse Kotei Offices and
Commercial Complex

Private Mail Bag, Community One,
Tema

Tel. 022 201432, 208385-6

Kumasi Branch

OTB 571 Asomfo Road

Adum Roundabout, Adum
Private Mail Bag, G.P.O. Kumasi
Tel. 051 32597, 31579

Abossey Okai Branch
Crystal Plaza Building
Opposite Presby Church
Main Spare Parts Lane
Abossey Okai, Accra

Tel. 021 673181, 673475

Techiman (Jubilee) Branch
Plot 415 Abanim

Techiman Tamale Main Street
P. 0. Box TM 515

Techiman

Tel. 0653 22411-2

HFC Investment Services Limited
6 Sixth Avenue

Ridge Ambassadorial Enclave
West Ridge, Accra. 021 665095,
664214, 664203, 664372

Tamale Branch

No. 8 Daboya Street

Old Market

Tamale Tel. 071-26705,25558

KNUST Campus Branch
Commercial Area
Kumasi

Tel. 051-64243,64241

South Industrial Area Branch
Parcel No. 67

Blk 3, South Industrial Area
Tel. 021-670780,670789
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PART 10
PROVISIONAL LETTER OF ALLOTMENT - HFC BANK
(GHANA) LIMITED RENOUNCEABLE RIGHTS OFFERING

Dear Sir/ Madam

Your Directors have upon the terms contained in the Right offer document and this letter provisionally
allotted to you the number of new ordinary shares set out in the Allocation Details on the Application
Form subject to the Regulations of the Company and relevant provisions of the Ghana Stock Exchange
Listing Regulations. Allotments have been made to ordinary shareholders on the Company's Register at
the close of the business on April 30, 2008 in the proportion of one (1) new ordinary share for every
four(4) ordinary shares held. You have the right to subscribe for these at a price of GH¢ 0.39 per ordinary
share payable in full on acceptance, not latter than 17:00 GMT on 30th May, 2008. You may subscribe for
all or any of the shares provisionally allotted to you under the Allocation Details by completing Section A
of the Application Form. You may renounce all or part of the shares allotted to you in favour of a third
party. A renouncee should complete section C(B) of the Application Form and attach to your completed
Section A Form before submitting your rights. You may contact Merban Stockbrokers Limited, HFC
Investment Service Limited or any other broker for any clarification you may require . You may subscribe
for additional shares (see section B of the Application Form). The new ordinary shares will, when fully

paid, rank pari passuin all respect with the existing ordinary shares.

By Order of the Board.
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PART 11
APPLICATION FORM

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
(vii)

Instructions

Please complete this Form and submit the original copy to the Registrars, Merchant Bank (Ghana)
Ltd., 57 Examination Loop, P. O. Box 401, North Ridge, Accra or any of Merchant Bank or HFC Bank
Branches across the country.

(ALLOCATION DETAILS)

AOCATION SEIIAINO: ..ot sss s eneons

Number of sharesalready OWNEd: ...

Number of new ordinary shares allocated: ...
SECTION A —(SUBSCRIPTION INSTRUCTIONS)
I wish to subscribe fully to my Rights.

] Yes [] No

| wish to subscribe to more shares in addition to my Allocated Rights.

D Yes |:| No

I wish to renounce fully my Rights

|:| Yes |:| No

| wish to split (partially renounce) my Rights.

D Yes D No
Ifyes, see (v) and (vii).
Number of Rightstaken up UNder SPlit: ... oo

Number of Rights renounced under split: ...
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SHAREHOLDER DETAILS
i For Individual Shareholders

FAMIIY NGME: oo srsens (Mr. Mrs. Ms. Other)

PN Lo [T OO

EMAIL et e er s Tl e

Residential Status:

|:| Ghanaian |:| Resident Foreigner |:| Non Resident Foreigner

Custodian |:| Yes |:| No

CONEACTE PEISON ... s s (Mr. Mrs. Ms. Other)
A TIESS: .oeeeeveeveeveeseesmesmesessassas sttt
EMAil s Tl e
Residential Status of Company:

|:| Ghanaian |:| Resident Foreigner

|:| Non Resident Foreigner

Custodian |:| Yes |:| No

IF Y S, SEATE NI c.oooo e s oo s ses e

COTPOTATE STAMIP: .ottt et et et R85k R8st
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SECTION B — (EXCESS SHARE APPLICATION FOR EXISTING SHAREHOLDERS)

I/We wish to subscribe to ..., Shares in addition to my Allotted Rights. (I/We
understand that getting these additional shares depends upon the number of unsubscribed shares
available after the closure of the Offer).

I/We certify that all statements made in this application to enable me take up/reject/split my rights in
the HFC Rights Issue are correct and the responses are my own. |/We authorize the Registrars of HFC,
Merchant Bank (Ghana) Limited, to make available information to support this application in its

entirety.
Shareholder's Signature Date Receiving Agent's Stamp/Signature
Please Tear Along This Line
_ To be completed by the Receiving Agent and then signed and retained by applicant as evidence of application
HFC RIGHTS ISSUE APPLICATION COUNTER FOIL
Applicant’s Name and Address Applicant’s Signature or Receiving Agent’s
Thumbprint Stamp/Signature/Date
Name:
Address:

No. of Shares Applied For: Amount Paid (GH¢/S/£/€)
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SECTION C (RENOUNCEE) — HFC RIGHTS ISSUE APPLICATION FORM

To be Completed By Qualifying Shareholders renouncing some or all of their rights and renouncees

I/We Wish t0 take Up ...ocovvveveereeeeeeeee s Shares under my Rights.

I/We wish to renounce the remaining .........oooevvccoervverieenns shares in favour of the following person(s):

Name of Renouncee Number of Shares Amount Payable

(RENOUNCEE DETAILS)
For Individual Renouncees
FamMIily NAME: ... (Mr. Mrs. Ms. Other)
FOPENAMIE (S): oo sss bbb

Yo Lo 1T OO OO

Identification NUMDEr ... Type Of Do,

Residential Status: |:| Ghanaian D Resident Foreigner |:| Non-Resident Foreigner
Custodian |:| Yes D No If yes, State Name: ...,

Dividend Mandate
BaNK NAME....ocecseesee e

Branch NAMIE ... e
ACCOUNT NAME....ooeee e e _

ACCOUNT NUMDBEN ...

For Company or Institution Renouncees

COMPANY/OIGANTISALION: ...oovorooe e

CONLACE PEISON: ....oooooeeeeece e (Mr. Mrs. Ms. Other)

AAATESS: ..oooo s sss e st s e sss s sss s sessns s ssssara e e sresesns
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¥

Residential Status of Company:

[ ] Ghanaian [ ] Resident Foreigner [ ] Non Resident Foreigner
Custodian Yes No If yes, State Name: ...
COMPOIAtE STAMIP: ettt s st s ettt

Dividend Mandate

Bank NamME........coierereinriiisese et snsennens
Branch NamMe ... eeseeseetnns
ACCOUNT NAME..o.ccoi s

ACCOUNT NUMDET ...

Renouncee's Signature Date Receiving Agent's Stamp/Signature

Please Tear Along This Line

To be completed by the Receiving Agent and then signed and retained by applicant as evidence of application
HFC RIGHTS ISSUE APPLICATION COUNTER FOIL

Applicant’s Name and Address Applicant’s Signature or Receiving Agent’s
Thumbprint Stamp/Signature/Date

Name:

Address:

No. of Shares Applied For: Amount Paid (GHC/S/£/€)
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SECTION D — HFC RIGHTS ISSUE APPLICATION FORM

To be Completed by Non-shareholders Who Are Not Renouncees But Wish To Apply For Shares in

HFC
APPLICATION
NO. OF SHATES ..o Amount Payable (GHC/S/E/E) ...oiereiseeeeereeeessemsemsensinnons
1. SUrNAME/COMPANY NAIME: ..o seeeesees s sesssssss s ssssss s ssssss s
FIFST INGIMIE: .ottt e et et bt e
IVITAAIE INGIMIE! .o
Title (tick) Mr/Mrs/Ms/Dr (011 o 1=] S Sex: M/F
Date of Birth/Incorporation: ............ccco....... Nationality/Country of Residence: ...
2 Identification NO. / COMPANY REE. NO.: w.......oocooooeicceseeeee e eeeeeeeesesse e ses s sesson
Passport |:| National ID |:| Driver's Licence |:|
3. AUGATESS: oo eeieesis e e eee st b8R8 R R
EMAili oot PRONE: oo
4. DIVIDEND MANDATE BaANK NAME! oo
Branch NAME! oottt
ACCOUNT NGME! oottt
ACCOUNT NUMDET! et s
5. Declaration:

I/We hereby apply for shares on the terms and conditions set out in the Offer Circular. | understand
and accept that getting these shares depends on the number of unsubscribed rights available after

_ the close of the offer. 1/We certify that all statements made in this application are correct and the
responses are my/our own.

Applicant’s Signature Date Receiving Agent's Stamp/Signature

Please Tear Along This Line

To be completed by the Receiving Agent and then signed and retained by applicant as evidence of application
HFC RIGHTS ISSUE APPLICATION COUNTER FOIL

Applicant’s Name and Address Applicant’s Signature or Receiving Agent’s
Thumbprint Stamp/Signature/Date

Name:

Address:

No. of Shares Applied For: Amount Paid (GH¢/S/E/€)



















